
 
 

CITY OF SEASIDE  
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

 Monday, May 13, 2024 
 
To provide public comment for City Council meetings, participants should register prior to the 
meeting. Please complete the form linked below to offer public comment at an upcoming City Council 
meeting. You may provide public comment using the following methods: 
 

1. In-person (meetings are held at Seaside City Hall, 989 Broadway, Seaside, OR) 
2. Via Zoom web conference or telephone (obtain link and register at cityofseaside.us)  
3. Written comments may be submitted using this form, via e-mail 

to publiccomment@cityofseaside.us or in person at City Hall (989 Broadway, Seaside, OR). 
 

If you are providing public comments in person or via Zoom, please keep in mind your comments will 
be limited to three (3) minutes. If your comments are longer than three (3) minutes, please submit 
your comment in writing and utilize your three (3) minutes to summarize your written document. 
Please review the Public Comment Rules of Conduct prior to the meeting.  

 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION: 5:00 PM 
 

"Work sessions are an opportunity for Council members to discuss issues informally 
with staff and invited guests. The Council encourages members of the public to attend 
work sessions and listen to discussion but there is generally no opportunity for public 
comment. Members of the public wishing to address the Council are welcome to do so 
during the Council's regularly scheduled meetings." 
 

1. Discussion – Homeless Camp {40 min} 
 

2. Discussion Future City Council Agenda Items {10 min}  
  

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING: 6:00 PM 

 
1. Call To Order 
 
2. Pledge Of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
4. Approval Of Agenda 

 
5. Proclamation:  

 
 

A. Proclamation – National Police Week  
 

B. Proclamation – National Public Works Week 
  

6. Recognition: 
 

There is no recognition. 

https://www.cityofseaside.us/city-council/webforms/public-comment-submission-or-registration
https://www.cityofseaside.us/city-council/webforms/public-comment-submission-or-registration
mailto:publiccomment@cityofseaside.us
https://www.cityofseaside.us/city-council/pages/how-connect


 
 
 

7. Public Comments  
 

Members of the public may use this time to provide comments to the City Council on 
items that are not scheduled on this agenda for a public hearing or public comment. 
Speaking time is limited to three minutes. 
 

8. Declaration Of Potential Conflict of Interest 
 
9. Consent Agenda 

 
A. Payment of the bills - $965,376.18 
 
B. Approval of minutes – April 22, 2024 
 

10. Reports And Presentations: 
 
 

 

A. Annual Report Seaside Public Works  
 

11. City of Seaside Boards, Commissions, And Committees  
 
 

No items for boards, commissions, and committees 
  
12. Unfinished Business  

 
 

A. Ordinance 2024-03 – An Ordinance of the City of Seaside, Oregon, Repealing 
Section 6.135 (Bed & Breakfast Establishments), and Section 6.137 (Vacation 
Rental Dwelling (VRD)) from the Seaside Zoning Ordinance 
 Open Public Hearing 
 Close Public Hearing 
 Council Comments 
 Motion to Read Ordinance 2024-03 second reading by title only. 
 Optional: Motion to Read Ordinance 2024-03 third reading by title only.  
 Motion to Adopt followed by Roll Call Vote.   
 

B. Ordinance 2024-04 – An Ordinance of the City of Seaside, Oregon, Adding 
Chapter 120 to Title XI (Business Regulations) of the Seaside Code of 
Ordinances 
 Open Public Hearing 
 Close Public Hearing 
 Council Comments 
 Motion to Read Ordinance 2024-04 second reading by title only. 
 Optional: Motion to Read Ordinance 2024-04 third reading by title only.  
 Motion to Adopt followed by Roll Call Vote. 
  

C. Ordinance 2024-06 – An Ordinance of the City of Seaside, Oregon, Providing 
for the Vacation of a Portion of Property Described as a Portion of 20th Avenue, 
that Extends from North Holladay Drive, and West to Necanicum River.    
 Open Public Hearing 
 Close Public Hearing 
 Council Comments 
 Motion to Read Ordinance 2024-06 second reading by title only.  
 Optional: Motion to Read Ordinance 2024-06 third reading by title only. 
 Motion to Adopt Followed by Roll Call Vote.   
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

13. New Business  
 

 

A. Ordinance 2024-07 – An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Seaside, 
Oregon, Pursuant to ORS 223.112-223.132, Setting a Public Hearing, 
Extending the Term of the Assessment District for Economic Improvement, 
Known as the “Downtown Maintenance District”; Repealing Ordinance No. 
2023-03, and all Ordinances in Conflict.     
 Open Public Hearing 
 Close Public Hearing 
 Council Comments 
 Motion to Read Ordinance 2024-07 first reading by title only. 
 Optional: Motion to Read Ordinance 2024-07 second reading by title only. 
 

B. Discussion – North 40 Property Lot Line Adjustment.  
 

14. Comments From City Staff 
 
15. Comments From the City Council 
 

16. Adjournment  
 
 
Complete copies of the Current Council meeting Agenda, Packets, and Minutes can be viewed at:  
www.cityofseaside.us.  
 

All meetings other than executive sessions are open to the public. When appropriate, any public 
member desiring to address the Council may be recognized by the presiding officer. Remarks are 
limited to the question under discussion except during public comment. This meeting is handicapped 
accessible. Please let us know at 503.738.5511 if you will need any special accommodation to 
participate in this meeting. 

http://www.cityofseaside.us/


 

 
 

(503) 738-5511 
cityofseaside.us 

989 Broadway 
Seaside, OR 97138 

P R O C L A M A T I O N 
 
To recognize National Police Week 2024 and to honor the service and sacrifice of those law enforcement officers 
killed in the line of duty while protecting our communities and safeguarding our democracy. 

 
WHEREAS, there are more than 800,000 law enforcement officers serving in communities across 

the United States, including the dedicated members of the Seaside Police Department; and 
 

WHEREAS, since the first recorded death in 1786, there are currently 24,067 law enforcement 
officers in the United States that have made the ultimate sacrifice and have been killed in the line of duty, 
including Sergeant Jason Goodding with the Seaside Police Department; and 
  

WHEREAS, the names of these dedicated public servants are engraved on the walls of the National 
Law Enforcement Officers Memorial in Washington, DC; and 
 

WHEREAS, fallen heroes are being added to the National Law Enforcement Officers Memorial this 
spring, including 136 officers killed in 2023 and 224 officers killed in the previous year; and  
 

WHEREAS, the service and sacrifice of all officers killed in the line of duty will be honored during 
the National Law Enforcement Officers Memorial 36th Candlelight Vigil, on the evening of May 13, 2024; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Candlelight Vigil is part of National Police Week, which will be observed this year 
May 10th-16th, and May 15 is designated as Peace Officers Memorial Day, in honor of all fallen officers and 
their families and U.S. flags should be flown at half-staff. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Steve Wright, Mayor of the City of Seaside, in the State of Oregon, call upon all 
citizens and upon all patriotic, civic and educational organizations to observe the week of May 10-16, 2024, 
as National Police Week, and call upon all our citizens to make every effort to express appreciation to 
these men and woman who are willing to sacrifice their lives, if necessary, to guard us and our loved ones 
against all who would violate the law.   
   
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that we invite all citizens to reflect on and remember all who lost their 
lives in service and will forever be remembered for their ultimate sacrifice.  
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of Seaside to be 
affixed this 13th day of May 2024. 
 
 
 
             
      STEVE WRIGHT, MAYOR 



 

 
 

(503) 738-5511 
cityofseaside.us 

989 Broadway 
Seaside, OR 97138 

P R O C L A M A T I O N 
 

“Advancing Quality of Life For All” 
 
 WHEREAS, public works professionals focus on infrastructure, facilities, and services 
that are of vital importance to sustainable and resilient communities and to the public health, 
high quality of life, and well-being of the people in the City of Seaside; and 
 
 WHEREAS, these infrastructure, facilities, and services could not be provided without 
the dedicated efforts of public works professionals, who are engineers, managers, and employees 
at all levels of government and the private sector, who are responsible for rebuilding, improving, 
and protecting our nation’s transportation, water supply, water treatment and solid waste 
systems, public buildings, and other structures and facilities essential for our citizens; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Seaside Public Works Department is responsible for forty-one miles of 
streets, nine bridge structures, eight miles of shoreline, thirty-nine miles of sewage collection 
piping, 602 sewer manholes, thirty-two pump/lift stations, 2 Water Reservoirs, forty-three miles 
of water line, 3,405 water meters and 656 fire hydrants; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the citizens, civic leaders, and children in the 
City of Seaside to gain knowledge of and maintain an ongoing interest and understanding of the 
importance of public works and public works programs in their respective communities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the year 2024 marks the 64th annual National Public Works Week sponsored 
by the American Public Works Association.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Steve Wright, Mayor of the City of Seaside do hereby designate the 
week of May 19 - 25, 2024 as 

 
NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK 

 
and urge all citizens to join with representatives of the American Public Works Association to pay 

tribute to our public works professionals, engineers, managers, and employees and to recognize 

the substantial contributions they make to protecting our national health, safety, and advancing 

quality of life for all. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have herewith set my hand and caused the seal of the City of 
Seaside to be affixed this 13th day of May, 2024. 

 
 
      _________________________________ 
      STEVE WRIGHT, MAYOR 



  

 

1 
 

CITY OF SEASIDE CITY COUNCIL 
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 

City Hall, 989 Broadway, Seaside, OR 97138 
Monday, April 22, 2024  

 

Work Session 5:00 PM 

1. Discussion – Proposed Amendment to Seaside Library Policies   
 

 

Mayor Wright opened the work session to discuss the amendments to the Seaside Library 

policies. Councilor Dillard presented his recommendations for changes to the library policies 

relating to access to certain books by minors. The Council discussed the request and 

discussed different questions and options.  
 

 

1. City Council Meeting 6:00 PM 
 

2. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Roll Call 
.   

Council Members P/A 

Tom Horning  P 
Randy Frank  P 

Seth Morrisey  P 
Steve Dillard P 
Steve Wright, Mayor P 

Cullen Edwards “If I Were Mayor” Winner P 
Tita Montero P 
David Posalski P 

 

Staff Members  

Spencer Kyle, City Manager Jon Rahl, Assistant City Manager 

Kim Jordan, City Recorder Dave Ham, Police Chief 
Zach Fleck, Finance Director Joey Daniels, Fire Chief 

Jennifer Reading, Library Director Mike Dimmick, Public Works Director 
Genesee Dennis, Division Chief Fire Joshua Heineman, Tourism and 

Marketing Director  
Jeff Flory, Community Development 
Director  

 

 

Visitors in Chambers 
(attendance sheet) 

Visitors on Zoom 

Tom Schwenzer  
Bob Fuller   

Victoria Fuller  
Pam Schwenzer  
Seamus McVey  

Braedan Burch  
Wendy Willis  

Sandy Ward  
Tess Ratty  
Joyce Hunt  

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=9m19s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=9m59s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=1h8m24s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=1h9m44s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=1h10m25s


  

 

2 
 

Lee Ann & Gerry Kawamura  

Meagan Hughes  
John Hesse  
Vivian & Pete Battjes   

Kathleen Teeple   
Judy Mace  
Mike Brackenbrough  

John Rippey  
Brenda Watson  

Russ Mead  
Laura Allen  
Janene Finger  

Kim Verne  
Paul McCarthy  
Shannon Smith   

Sara Mullery  
Dexter Savage   
Ester Codova  

Donna Benefiel  
Anita Dotson  

Jules Lyons  
Marilyn Mason  
Mary Blake   

 

 

4. Approval of Agenda  
 

Mayor Wright asked for approval for the agenda. 

Motion: So, moved.   
Moved: Frank 
Seconded: Posalski 

Ayes: Wright, Frank, Morrisey, Dillard, 
Posalski, Montero, Horning   

Nays:  
0 

Absent:  
0   

Recused: 
0  

Passed: 7/0 
 

 

5. If I were Mayor Contest 
 

Mayor Wright introduced the “If I Were Mayor Contest” winners from the Seaside School 

District 4th Grade Class. The winners of the contest were Cullen Edwards with first place, 

Ashanti Valasquez with second place, and Bella Vega with third place.  
  

6. Proclamation 
 

A. Arbor Day 
 

 

Victoria Fuller, City Tree Board Chair, read the guidance and the qualifications of being a Tree 
City USA designate and updated the City Council on the City Tree Board and the plans for an 
arboretum in Seaside.   

 
Councilor Horning read the Proclamation for Arbor Day. 

 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=1h11m1s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=1h11m33s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=1h17m30s


  

 

3 
 

B. Older Americans Month   
 

Councilor Montero commented on the Proclamation for Older Americans Month. The State of 
Oregon, through the Oregon Department of Human Services, provides services for people living 
with disabilities and in need of support as they age.  
 
Mayor Wright read the proclamation for Older Americans Month.  

 

7. Recognition 
 

There was no recognition.  
  

8. Public Comments (time is limited to 3 minute’s)  
 

Shannon Smith spoke against banning books from the library.   

Sandy Ward spoke against amending the library policy.   

Jules Lyons spoke against amending the library policy.   

Brenda Watson spoke in favor of amending the library policy.   

Pete Battjes spoke against amending the library policy.   

John Rippey spoke against amending the library policy.  

Meghan Hughes spoke against amending the library policy.   

Seamus McVey spoke against amending the library policy.   

Tom Schwenzer spoke against amending the library policy.   

Pam Schwenzer spoke against amending the library policy.   

Kathleen Teeple spoke against amending the library policy.   

Donna Bennefiel spoke against amending the library policy.   

Anne Branson spoke against amending the library policy.   

Esther Cordova Cromwell spoke against amending the library policy.   

Mary Blake spoke against amending the library policy.  
 

City Council Public Comment Submission Received:  

Marilynn Blacketer  

Christina Buck 

Marnie Murray 

Gini Dideum 

Jesse Taylor  

Sara  

John Hesse 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=1h28m50s


  

 

4 
 

Chuck Murphy 

Sandy Ward  
 

9. Declaration of Potential Conflict of Interest 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Councilor Dillard declared a potential conflict of interest regarding agenda items 14b and 

14c.   

10. Consent Agenda 
 

Motion: So, moved.       

Moved: Montero 
Seconded: Morrisey 

Ayes: Wright, Dillard, Morrisey, Frank, 
Posalski, Montero, Horning  

Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
0 

Recused:  
0 

Passed: 7/0 
 

 

11. Reports and Presentations  
 

A. Fire Chief Daniels and Division Chief Dennis presented the Seaside Fire Department 

annual report. 
  

B. Director Tourism and Marketing Heineman presented the Seaside Visitors Bureau 

annual report.  
   

12. City of Seaside boards, commissions, and committees  
 

There were no board, commission, or committee items. 
 

13. Unfinished Business 
 

There were no items for unfinished business.  
 

14. New Business 
 

A. Discussion of City Council Meeting Scheduled for Memorial Day, May 27, 2024.  
 
Motion: Moved to cancel the meeting scheduled for Memorial Day.        

Moved: Posalski 
Seconded: Morrisey 

Council Members Y/N  
Steve Wright, Mayor N  
Tom Horning N  

Randy Frank N  
Seth Morrisey N  
Steve Dillard Y  

David Posalski, President N  
Tita Montero N  

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=2h10m6s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=2h10m27s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=2h10m41s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=2h41m25s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=2h41m27s


  

 

5 
 

Ayes: Wright, Dillard, Morrisey, Frank, 
Posalski, Montero, Horning  

Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
0 

Recused:  
0 

Passed: 7/0 
 
 
B. Ordinance 2024-03 – An Ordinance of the City of Seaside, Oregon, Repealing Section 

6.135 (Bed and Breakfast Establishments), and Section 6.137 (Vacation Rental Dwelling 
(VRD) from the Seaside Zonin Ordinance.     

 

Mayor Wright commented before taking public testimony on Ordinance 2024-03, the Mayor 

read the process for Ordinance 2024-03.   

Community Development Director Flory introduced the City Council to Ordinance 2024-03, 

commenting the Seaside Planning Commission voted to recommend changes to the Seaside 

Zoning Ordinance (SZO) to remove Vacation Rental Dwellings (VRDs) and Bed and 

Breakfasts (B&Bs) from the zoning code. A new Short-Term Rental (STR) ordinance is being 

introduced under the Code of Ordinances in Title 11 – Business Regulations. 

Mayor Wright opened the public hearing, there were no public comments.   

Motion: Move to read Ordinance 2024-03 first reading by title only.     
Moved: Montero 

Seconded: Posalski 
Ayes: Wright, Morrisey, Frank, Posalski, 

Montero, Horning  
Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
0 

Recused:  
1 Dillard 

Passed: 6/0 

  

C. Ordinance 2024-04 – An Ordinance of the City of Seaside, Oregon, Adding Chapter 120 to 

Title XI (Business Regulations) of the Seaside Code of Ordinances.  

Mayor Wright commented before taking public testimony on Ordinance 2024-04, the Mayor 

read the process for Ordinance 2024-04.  

Community Development Director Flory introduced the City Council to Ordinance 2024-04, 

commenting the ordinance will implement short-term rental rules, application process, and 

penalties for repeated offenders and regulations in the Code of Seaside in business licensing. 

Mayor Wright opened the public hearing, there were no public comments.  
 

Motion: Move to read Ordinance 2024-04 by title only.      

Moved: Posalski 
Seconded: Montero 
Ayes: Wright, Morrisey, Frank, Posalski, 

Montero, Horning  
Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
0 

Recused:  
1 Dillard 

Passed: 6/0 
 

 

D. Ordinance 2024-06 – An Ordinance of the City of Seaside, Oregon, Providing for the 

Vacation of a Portion of Property Described as a Portion of 20th Avenue that Extends from 

North Holladay Drive, and West to Necanicum River.      

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=2h42m6s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=2h42m6s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=2h42m6s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=2h47m36s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=2h47m36s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=2h57m4s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=2h57m4s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=2h57m4s


  

 

6 
 

Community Development Director Flory explained the ordinance would provide for the 

vacation of a portion of 20th Avenue West of Holladay Drive. The Ordinance would vacate a 

portion of 20th Avenue that extends from North Holladay Drive West to the Necanicum River 

and was depicted on a map provided.  

Mayor Wright opened the public hearing.    

John Edwards asked how the parcel would be accessed if the city gained ownership of 

everything abutting Holiday Drive and the right of way.  

City Manager Kyle stated the property owner will own everything to the north and the city 

was in the process of purchasing the lots to the South. 

Mayor Wright closed the public hearing.  
 

Motion: Move to read Ordinance 2024-06 by title only.      
Moved: Frank 

Seconded: Horning  
Ayes: Wright, Dillard, Morrisey, Frank, 

Posalski, Montero, Horning  
Nays:  
0 

Absent: 
0 

Recused:  
0 

Passed: 7/0 
 

 

15. Comments from City Staff and Partner Organizations 
 

Katie McCloud, Chamber of Commerce Executive Director, commented on the Volleyball 

event scheduled in Seaside, and Katie joined the Oregon Community Foundation North Coast 

Leadership Team.   

Public Works Director Dimmick updated the City Council on the Mobi Mat for the beach, 

Thompson Falls backup generator for the water system, upgrades to the community gardens, 

and curb painting that will begin, weather permitting.  

Library Director Reading updated the City Council on a successful fundraiser at the Library.  

Assistant City Manager Rahl updated the City Council on openings for resident firefighter, 

lifeguard, and summer help positions with the City of Seaside.  

City Manager Kyle updated the City Council regarding the Supreme Court hearing oral 

arguments today on the Grants Pass appeal regarding homeless camping, and emergency 

management training for elected officials.   
 

16. Comments from City Council 
 

Councilor Dillard commented on the Community Center Commission meeting and the 

construction plans for the Bob Chisholm Community Center.  

Councilor Morrisey commented on the information he sent to the Council concerning the 

homeless camp location.  

Councilor Montero announced Coffee with a Councilor on April 30, 2024, and serving as a 

board member for Clatsop Community Action and what the agency represented.  

Councilor Posalski updated the City Council on the Community Gardens. 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=3h3m51s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=3h15m29s


  

 

7 
 

Mayor Wright announced the Sunset Empire Transportation District (SETD) meeting, 

thanked the Budget Committee for completing the City of Seaside Budget process, and 

announced the League of Oregon Cities Spring Conference.  

      

17. Executive Session: Recess into Executive Session: 8:24 PM. 
 

In accordance with ORS 192.660 (2) (e) regarding conducting deliberations with persons 

designated to negotiate real property transactions.   
 

18. Reconvene into Regular Session: 8:43 PM 
 

In accordance with ORS 192.660 (2) (e) regarding conducting deliberations with persons 

designated to negotiate real property transactions.   

City Council action if any regarding executive session: No business to transpire.  
 

19. Adjourn City Council Meeting 8:44 PM 
 

Approved by Council on: ____________________ 
 
  
Minutes prepared by: _____________________  

   Kim Jordan, City Recorder 
 

____________________________ 
STEVE WRIGHT, Mayor  

 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=3h24m37s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=3h42m57s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=8Ot99grCpOE&t=4178s#t=3h43m4s


Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

jflory@cityofseaside.us 

989 Broadway, Seaside, OR 97138 

(503) 738-7100 

- 1 - 

 
 

APPLICATION(S):   769-24-000010-PLNG – Zoning Ordinance Amendment 

MEETING DATE:  May 13, 2024 

PUBLIC HEARING:  Yes  

Report Date:    May 7, 2024 

Applicant:   City of Seaside 

Previous Meetings:  Planning Commission Public Hearing on April 2, 2024                

                                                  Continued to April 16, 2024, City Council Public Hearing on  

    April 22, 2024. 

Previous Approvals:   None  
Type of Action:   Legislative 
Land Use Authority:  City Council 
Future Routing:   City Council 
Planner:    Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

 

A. Summary:   

On April 16, 2024, the Seaside Planning Commission voted to recommend changes to 

the Seaside Zoning Ordinance (SZO) to remove Vacation Rental Dwellings (VRDs) 

and Bed and Breakfasts (B&Bs) from the zoning code. A new Short-Term Rental 

(STR) ordinance will be introduced under the Code of Ordinances in Title 11 - 

Business Regulations. On April 22, 2024, the City Council held a public hearing on 

the proposed ordinance and approved the first reading.    

 

 

 

 

B. Exhibits:   

 

1. Ordinance 2024-03 

2. Public Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

   Staff Recommendation:  

Staff recommends the City Council hold the public hearing on the proposed amendment, 

take public comments, review and discuss the request, and have second reading of 

ordinance 2024-03.  

 

 

mailto:jflory@cityofseaside.us


Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

jflory@cityofseaside.us 

989 Broadway, Seaside, OR 97138 

(503) 738-7100 

- 2 - 

C. Background:   

In 1992, the City of Seaside passed an ordinance regulating VRDs within the SZO in some 

residential zones. The ordinance was amended in 2000 but remained under our land use 

codes. Due to recent court cases regarding short-term rentals, the City’s attorneys have 

recommended regulations for VRDs and B&Bs be moved out of land use and into business 

licensing.  

D. Specific Request:  

Ordinance 2024-03 will remove VRDs and B&Bs from the SZO. Should the City Council 

choose to approve this ordinance, a new ordinance (2024-04) that will regulate STRs will be 

introduced for first reading.  

E. Process:  

This request is being reviewed under Article 9 and Article 10 of the Seaside Zoning 

Ordinance. Article 9 establishes the criteria for amendments to the ordinance and Article 10 

establishes the process and procedures that are applicable to this request.  

F. Community Review:  

Notice of this public hearing was published in the Daily Astorian on April 11, 2024. A mailed 

notice regarding the zoning ordinance change was sent to all addresses in Seaside on March 

7, 2024. On March 21, 2024, another mailed notice was sent to all Seaside property owners 

who reside outside of the city stating the April 2, 2024, public hearing will be continued to a 

meeting on April 16, 2024. On April 27, 2024, notice of this public hearing was published in 

the Daily Astorian. 

G. Written Comments: 

At this time, nine written comments have been submitted pursuant to this request. The 

comments are attached to this report and briefly summarized below.  

Don Godard submitted a written comment with suggestions he would like to see in the new 

STR ordinance. Finding: The Planning Commission does not make the decision on what will 

be included within the new ordinance. That authority lies solely with the City Council when 

they hold their hearings on the new STR ordinance.  

Seth Hague submitted comments regarding the approval of STRs within the Planned 

Development that will be located within the old high school property. Finding: The 

allocation of STRs within the future Planned Development is pursuant to a purchase 

agreement for the Estuary Park. The Planned Development application has not been 

submitted and the type of housing that will be constructed is unknown.  

Robert Houghton submitted comments as to the impacts of removing VRDs and B&Bs from 

the SZO. Mr. Houghton expressed concerns about the impact not having short-term rentals 

will have on the local economy. Finding: The Planning Commission is recommending the 

removal of the regulations for STRs from the land use codes. A new ordinance will be 

implemented within business licensing that will regulate STRs. STRs will still be allowed in 

some areas of the city.   

Tim Mancell expressed concerns regarding allowing 25% of the dwelling units within the old 

high school property’s future Planned Development as STRs. Finding: Provisions for the 

mailto:jflory@cityofseaside.us


Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

jflory@cityofseaside.us 

989 Broadway, Seaside, OR 97138 

(503) 738-7100 

- 3 - 

development of the old high school property are pursuant to a purchase agreement for the 

Estuary Park. The number of dwelling units that will be proposed is unknown at this time.  

Jesse Taylor expressed concerns regarding the provisions for the STRs within the planned 

development at the old high school property. Finding: Provisions for the development of the 

old high school property are pursuant to a purchase agreement for the Estuary Park. The 

number of dwelling units that will be proposed is unknown at this time. 

Marnie Murray submitted suggested changes to some of the provisions of the ordinance 

including the fee schedule, fine schedule, densities, yard area, occupancies, waiting periods, 

and number of STRs per owner.  Finding: Many of the regulations in this ordinance are the 

result of Planning Commission and City Council work sessions dating back to the early 

2000s. These regulations are in place as this is what the Planning Commission and City 

Council have determined is best for the community. These regulations are open to discussion 

and amending by the elected body.  

Chris Schwindt expressed concerns that the areas where STRs are allowed are unfair to 

those who own property outside of those designated locations. Chris stated that all 

restrictions should be lifted outside of common-sense safety and nuisance-related rules. 

Finding: The areas of approval for STRs are designated to provide tourist-related housing 

near the city’s most popular places for visitors, the ocean shore, and Broadway. These areas 

are also less common for lower-cost or affordable housing. The areas outside of the designated 

STR locations are more conducive for permanent residents, and long-term rental housing and 

should be protected from inundation of STRs.  

Jesse Taylor provided a second comment expressing the following concerns: Mr. Taylor has 

concerns regarding the boundary that allows STRs and that a provision in the ordinance will 

allow STR for a percentage of the dwelling units in the future Planned Development at the 

old high school property. Mr. Taylor is concerned that the Planning Commission was not 

involved in creating the new ordinance for STRs. Finding: The provision in the new STR 

ordinance regarding the estuary properties is part of the purchase agreement for the city to 

acquire the estuary parking lot. The Planning Commission held two public hearings 

regarding this ordinance prior to voting to recommend approval to the City Council. The new 

STR ordinance is based on the previous work done by the Planning Commission and City 

Council and the policies that were created over the past 20 years. The new STR ordinance 

codifies the provisions for STRs in the Seaside Code of Ordinances under business license 

regulations. Business licensing is out of the Planning Commission's purview and 

implementing or later changing the STR ordinance is solely in the scope of the City Council.  

Chuck Murphy submitted a public comment stating he is in favor of the STR density 

percentages and believes the license should not be transferrable. Mr. Murphy is also in favor 

of the fines as they were written into the new STR ordinance. Finding: Mr. Murphy states 

that “Seaside is a community for tourism and residents.” Being that Seaside is a major 

tourist destination and relies heavily on the tourist-driven economy, commonsense STR 

regulations are necessary for the betterment of this community.  

H. Comprehensive Plan:   

Section 3.1.2 – Residential states:  

Medium Density: These areas are characterized by moderately dense housing on generally 

small lots. Uses include mostly single-family housing dwellings with a mixture of duplex or 

two-family units and other uses consistent with residential neighborhoods, such as churches, 

mailto:jflory@cityofseaside.us


Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

jflory@cityofseaside.us 

989 Broadway, Seaside, OR 97138 

(503) 738-7100 

- 4 - 

schools, community facilities, and parks or recreational areas. This area may also contain 

manufactured homes, manufactured home parks, and vacation rental dwellings.” 

High Density: These areas are characterized by urban high-density qualities such as 

apartment houses, as well as some mix of single-family, duplexes, and other uses consistent 

with high-density residential areas. These areas may also contain limited amounts of 

commercial uses that are a convenience to residents of high-density area. These convenience 

establishments have the purpose of providing convenient shopping for daily necessities 

within easy walking distance, which will help to cut down on traffic in areas presently 

congested because of very narrow streets. This will also help to conserve energy by saving on 

fuel consumption.  

Dwelling units in this area should be for full-time residential use.” 

Section 4.1 – Housing Policies states: 

“2. Since the city of Seaside is a recreational community and major tourist attraction on the 

Oregon Coast, it is recognized that there is a need for recreational types of housing, 

including beach homes, vacation rentals, motels, recreational vehicle parks, and 

campgrounds…” 

Section 4.0 – Housing states:  

“Twenty-two percent of the housing units in Seaside are used only part-time as beach 

cabins. The city has attempted to separate the housing used by permanent residents and 

that used by visitors through the creation of a resort residential zone and by regulating 

vacation rentals in medium and high-density residential zones.” 

I. Zoning Ordinance Criteria for Amendments: 

Section 9.010 AUTHORIZATION TO INITIATE AMENDMENTS  

An amendment to the text of this Ordinance or to a Zoning Map may be initiated 

by the City Council, the Planning Commission, or by application of a property 

owner. The request by a property owner for an amendment shall be accomplished 

by filing an application with the City Planner using forms prescribed pursuant to 

Section 10.040. Finding: The Planning Commission directed staff to initiate this 

amendment at the March 5, 2024, Planning Commission meeting.  

Section 9.020 PUBLIC HEARINGS ON AMENDMENTS  

The Planning Commission shall conduct a public hearing on the proposed 

amendment its earliest practicable meeting after the amendment is proposed and 

shall within forty (40) days after the hearing, recommend to the City Council 

approval, disapproval, or modified approval of the proposed amendment. After 

receiving the recommendation of the Planning Commission, the City Council may 

hold a public hearing on the proposed amendment. Finding: The April 2, 2024, 

Planning Commission meeting was the first opportunity for the Planning Commission to hold 

a public hearing on the proposed amendment. That public hearing was continued to the April 

16, 2024 Planning Commission meeting. On April 16, 2024, the Planning Commission 

recommended this ordinance amendment to the City Council. 

J. Additional Findings, Conclusions, and Justification Statements:  

mailto:jflory@cityofseaside.us


Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

jflory@cityofseaside.us 

989 Broadway, Seaside, OR 97138 

(503) 738-7100 

- 5 - 

1. Based on criteria in the Comprehensive Plan, staff has prepared an ordinance to replace 

the regulations for VRDs and B&Bs within the land use code. The new STR ordinance 

will be codified under business licensing.  

2. The STR ordinance will continue the allowance of STRs (Vacation Rental Dwellings and 

Homestay Lodging) within the tourist areas of Seaside. The STR ordinance will allow for 

the permitting of VRDs in areas west of the Necanicum River with specific densities so 

that the special distribution of VRDs do not concentrate in one specific neighborhood.  

3. The City Council and Planning Commission have worked for several years to develop 

policies for the orderly regulation of STRs. These policies and the work that has 

previously been conducted are the basis for the new STR ordinance.  

4. Although the new ordinance is outside of the purview of the Planning Commission, it is 

important to recognize that the Comprehensive Plan identifies a need for STRs and their 

orderly regulation.  

K. Conclusion: 

The Zoning Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan requirements have been adequately 

addressed and the City Council can approve the second reading of Ordinance 2024-03.  

L. Recommendation  

Staff Recommendation:  

Staff recommends the City Council conduct a public hearing on the proposed amendment, 

take public comments, review and discuss the request, and have the second reading of 

ordinance 2024-03 by title only.  

A City Councilor may make the following motion:  

“I move to read Ordinance 2024-03 by title only.” 

A councilor may also make a motion to have a third reading by title only by stating: 

“I move to read Ordinance 2024-03 by title only.” 

If the third reading is approved, a councilor may make the following motion:  

“I move to adopt Ordinance 2024-03 by title only.” 

 

 

The information in this report and the recommendation of staff are not binding on the City 

Council and may be altered or amended during the public hearing. 

mailto:jflory@cityofseaside.us


 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-03 1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-03  
   

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEASIDE, OREGON, REPEALING SECTION 

6.135 AND SECTION 6.137 FROM THE SEASIDE ZONING ORDINANCE. 

  

WHEREAS, the City of Seaside has issued business licenses for Vacation Rental Dwellings 

since 1992, and  

  

WHEREAS, Vacation Rental Dwellings and Bed & Breakfasts have been conditionally 

permitted uses regulated through the Seaside Zoning Ordinance in some residential zones, and  

  

WHEREAS, it appears to the City of Seaside that these activities are more appropriately 

regulated through a business regulation process rather than a land use process and that it is, 

therefore necessary to remove Vacation Rental Dwellings from the Seaside Zoning Ordinance. 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SEASIDE ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:  

 

Section 1.030, Section 3.033, Section 3.043, Section 3.049, Section 3.055, and Section 6.025 of 

the Seaside Zoning Ordinance are hereby amended to as follows:  

 

Section 1.030 DEFINITIONS  

Vacation Rental Dwelling.  A single family dwelling, duplex or triplex which is rented or hired 

out for a period of less than 30 days.  The dwelling may consist of individual units or be in a 

contiguous form to be considered a vacation rental dwelling.  However, each individual unit is to 

be considered separately for licensing and regulation purposes.  

 

Section 3.033 Conditional Uses Permitted.  In the R-2 Zone, the following uses and their 

accessory uses are permitted subject to the provisions of Article 6:  

1. Church and other religious structures.  

2. Primary, elementary, junior or senior high school; kindergarten, or day nursery; or a 

higher education institution.  

3. Community meeting buildings.  

4. Cemetery.  

5. Golf course, except commercial driving ranges or miniature golf course.  

6. Public park, playground, or other similar publicly owned recreational use.  

7. Temporary real estate office in a subdivision.  

8. Utility substation.  

9. Radio or television transmitter or tower.  

10. Government or municipal structure or use.  

11. Manufactured Dwelling Park  

12. Nursing homes and hospitals.  

13. Professional offices when the lot adjoins a State Highway or major arterial and when 

the lot is contiguous to, or across the street from a commercial or industrial zone.  

14. Private sports complex.  

15. Manufactured Dwelling Subdivision.       

16. Bed & Breakfast establishments subject to provisions in Sections 6.135 and 6.136.  



 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-03 2 

 

17. Vacation Rental Dwellings subject to provisions in Section 6.137.  

18.17. Manufactured home on an individual lot when placed upon a permanent 

foundation and subject to Section 4.135.  This section does not apply to land 

designated as a historic district or land adjacent to a historic landmark.  

19.18. Home Occupation subject to Sections 4.130 through 4.134.  

20.19. Major modification of existing roads and public facilities and services; New roads 

that are not part of a partition or subdivision.  These activities do not authorize the 

condemnation of property without due process.  

21.20. Public facilities such as Fire Stations, Police Stations, or Ambulance 

Substations.  (ORD. No. 99-11)  

  

Section 3.043 Conditional Uses Permitted.  In the R-3 Zone the following conditional uses and 

their accessory uses are permitted subject to the provisions of Article 6:  

1. Churches and other religious structures.  

2. Primary, elementary, junior and senior high schools; or a higher education institution.  

3. Kindergarten or day nursery.  

4. Community meeting building.  

5. Cemetery.  

6. Golf course, except commercial driving ranges, or miniature golf courses.  

7. Public park, playground, or other similar publicly owned recreational uses.  

8. Temporary real estate office in a subdivision.  

9. Utility substation.  

10. Radio or television tower or transmitter.  

11. Government or municipal structure or use.  

12. Convenience establishments.  

13. Boarding, lodging or rooming house.  

14. Group care homes, homes for the aged, nursing homes, and hospitals.  

15. Professional offices when the lot adjoins a state highway or major arterial, or is 

contiguous to, or across the street from a commercial industrial zone.  

16. Private sports complex.  

17. Manufactured Home Subdivision.  

18. Bed & Breakfast establishments subject to provisions in Sections 6.135 and 6.136.  

19. Vacation Rental Dwellings subject to provisions Section 6.137.  

20.18. Manufactured home on an individual lot when placed upon a permanent 

foundation and subject to Section 4.135.  This section does not apply to land 

designated as a historic district or land adjacent to a historic landmark.  

21.19. Home occupations subject to Sections 4.130 through 4.134.  

22.20. Major modification of existing roads and public facilities and services; New roads 

that are not part of a partition or subdivision.  These activities do not authorize the 

condemnation of property without due process.  

23.21. Public facilities such as Fire Stations, Police Stations, or Ambulance Substations. 

(ORD. No. 99-11)  

Section 3.049 Conditional Uses Permitted.  In the R-R Zone, the following Conditional Uses 

and their accessory uses are permitted subject to the provisions of Article 6:  

1. Church and other religious structures.  

2. Condominiums and Time Share Units.  



 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-03 3 

 

3. Community meeting building.  

4. Golf course, except commercial driving ranges or miniature golf courses.  

5. Public park, playground, or other similar publicly owned recreational use.  

6. Utility substation.  

7. Professional offices, when the lot adjoins a state highway or major arterial, or when the 

lot is contiguous to, or across the street from a commercial or industrial zone.  

8. Gift shop, or other uses appropriate to a motel or hotel, but only when a part of a hotel 

or motel.  

9. Aquariums.  

10. Restaurant and cocktail lounge, when in conjunction with a motel.  

11. Group care homes, homes for the aged, and nursing homes.  

12. Vacation Rental Dwellings subject to provisions in Section 6.137.  

13.12. Manufactured home on an individual lot when placed upon a permanent 

foundation and subject to Section 4.135.   

14.13. Major modification of existing roads and public facilities and services; New roads 

that are not part of a partition or subdivision.  These activities do not authorize the 

condemnation of property without due process.  

15. 14.  Public facilities such as Fire Stations, Police Stations, or Ambulance 

Substations.   (ORD. No. 99-11)   

 

Section 3.055 Conditional Uses Permitted.  In the R-C Zone, the following conditional uses 

and their accessory uses are permitted subject to the provisions of Article 6.  

1. Church and other religious structures.  

2. Wedding chapel.  

3. Group care homes, homes for the aged, nursing homes and residential homes.  

4. Primary, elementary, junior or senior high schools; kindergarten or day nursery; or a 

higher education institution.  

5. Public park, playground, or other similar publicly owned recreational use.  

6. Government or municipal structures or use.  

7. Utility substation.  

8. Bed and Breakfast establishments subject to provisions in Section 6.135 and 6.136.  

9.8.   Grocery stores  

10.9.  Restaurants  

11. Vacation Rental Dwellings subject to provisions in Section 6.137.  

12.10. Manufactured home on an individual lot when placed upon a permanent 

foundation and subject to Section 4.135.  This section does not apply to land 

designated as a historic district or land adjacent to a historic landmark.  

13.11. Major modification of existing roads and public facilities and services; New roads 

that are not part of a partition or subdivision.  These activities do not authorize the 

condemnation of property without due process.  

14.12. Public facilities such as Fire Stations, Police Stations, or Ambulance 

Substations.  (ORD. No. 99-11)  

Section 6.025 ADMINISTRATIVE CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS  

The Community Development Director, Planning Director, or their designee shall have the 

authority to approve the following conditional uses provided they comply with their respective 

criteria:  



 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-03 4 

 

1. Manufactured homes on individual lots subject to Section 4.135.  

2. Bed & Breakfast establishments subject to Sections 6.135 and 6.136.  

3. Vacation Rental Dwellings subject to Section 6.137.  

4.2. Home Occupations subject to Sections 4.130, 4.131, 4.132, 4.133, and 4.134.  

 

Following the above criteria will take the place of Sections 6.020 through 6.043.    

  

Section 6.135 Bed & Breakfast Establishments, 6.136 Variance Procedure for Bed & Breakfast 

Establishments, and Section 6.137 Vacation Rental Dwelling (VRD) of the Seaside Zoning 

Ordinance are hereby repealed in their entirety.    

  

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Seaside on this       day 

of                   ,                    2023, by the following roll call vote:  

  

YEAS:    

NAYS:   

ABSTAIN:   

ABSENT:   

  

SUBMITTED to and APPROVED by the Mayor on this        day of                        , 2023.  

  

  

  

STEVE WRIGHT, MAYOR  

ATTEST:  

  

  

Spencer Kyle, City Manager  
 













1

Jordan Sprague

From: Jeff Flory
Sent: Monday, April 15, 2024 9:58 AM
To: Jordan Sprague
Subject: FW: Comments on proposed STR ordinances

This one too.  
 
Jeff Flory 
Community Development Director 
City of Seaside 
Office: (503) 738-7100 
Mobile: (503) 583-4007 
cityofseaside.us 

 
 

From: cdadmin <cdadmin@cityofseaside.us>  
Sent: Thursday, April 11, 2024 9:20 AM 
To: Jeff Flory <jflory@cityofseaside.us> 
Subject: FW: Comments on proposed STR ordinances 
 
 
 
Debbie Kenyon 
Administrative Assistant 
City of Seaside 
Community Development 
Mailing: 989 Broadway St. 
Physical: 1387 Ave. U 
Seaside, OR 97138 
Office: (503) 738-7100 
cityofseaside.us 
  

 
 
 
 

From: Christopher Schwindt <chris@cds-enterprise.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, April 10, 2024 11:29 AM 



2

To: cdadmin <cdadmin@cityofseaside.us> 
Subject: Comments on proposed STR ordinances 
 

Caution! This message was sent from outside your organization.  Allow sender | Block sender  

sophospsmartba nnere nd  
Dear Planning Commission: 
 
These comments concern the proposed updates to City code concerning STRs / VRDs in the City of Seaside.  My 
company currently owns property at 924 Ave H, Seaside. 
 
I disagree with the proposed code changes.  I have no issue with eliminating the Bed & Breakfast designation and 
streamlining the process through another department.  The issue I have is with the limitations and quotas imposed 
on property owners concerning STR/VRD permits.   
 
The City’s proposal allows blanket 100% density approvals along the ocean front, which are the most valuable 
properties in town owned by the wealthiest owners.  Then scaling it back from there not even to 101 and no one 
else in the City even gets to participate in the STR/VRD economy.  This is so patently unfair and biased towards the 
wealthiest, best-positioned landowners I am shocked you would even propose this.  I guess they probably pay the 
most local taxes too, but still.  You are proposing to devalue every other landowner’s property outside of the 
“anointed zone” and boost those within it tremendously.  This is just totally unfair to your constituent landowner / 
taxpayers throughout the larger remaining area of Seaside.  I also disagree with the City restricting STR/VRD use at 
all.   
 
Inspections for safety and reasonable rules for operation to prevent nuisances for other landowners are 
OK.  However, other restrictions amount to a taking without compensation at worst, and unnecessary, heavy-
handed, diminution of value, economy-interfering regulation at best.   You should allow the free market to do its 
own work of finding the right equilibrium among the possible uses of private property.  Anything else is basically 
top-down, command and control economics, i.e., communism.  What makes you the anointed ones to determine 
which individual economic decisions about use of private property are “best”?  You pretend to know, but all you 
are doing is creating even worse distortions of the true economy, and there will be serious negative consequences, 
as there always are.   
 
You should lift all restrictions other than common sense safety and nuisance related rules.  The economy, through 
thousands of individual free-will choices, will determine the highest best use of individual private property.  If you 
don’t like the results, then take actions at the cost of the collective (taxpayers) to provide the benefit or amenity 
(e.g., low-income long-term housing) you think you can provide by just targeting the homeowners outside of your 
proposed “anointed zones” at their individual expense and the benefit of the selected few lucky landowners how 
somehow curried governmental favor.   You should scrap this entire proposal and go back to the drawing board 
with free-market capitalism and constitutional rights at the forefront of your minds. 
 
Regards,  
 
Christopher Schwindt 
Email: chris@cds-enterprise.com 
Phone: (503) 810-6374 
Mail:  PO Box 80794, Portland, OR 97280 
 



1

Jordan Sprague

From: Marnie Murray <marnie.murray@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, April 8, 2024 7:14 PM
To: Jordan Sprague; Marnie Murray
Subject: Written comments on Vacation Rental Dwellings

Caution! This message was sent from outside your organization.  Allow sender | Block sender  

 
This email is my written comments on the Proposed Updates to the Seaside Zoning Ordinances and 
the changes to the Business Licenses to accommodate Vacation Rental Dwelling Units. 
 
First, the website indicates that Seaside will only approval one VRD license per owner. Why this restriction? If 
I'm financially able to purchase more than one property in Seaside, why should I be prevented from using 
them both as Vacation Rentals?  
 
I am using the version of the ordinance available at  
chrome-
extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https://www.cityofseaside.us/sites/g/files/vyhlif6311/f/uploads/
short_term_rental_ordinance.pdf 
 
120.03.1 paragraph: a waiting period of 180 days after an expired application is excessive. Who knows what 
issues may be discovered by a Community Development inspection or how long it may take to fix the issues? 
Recommend 30 days maximum. 
120.03.2 An Application Fee of $500 is excessive. The standalone Inspection Fee is $100, which makes the fee 
to process the paperwork $400. If the paperwork is so complicated that is takes $400 of a clerk's time to 
process it, then paperwork should be simplified. I recommend a reduction of the Application Fee to $200, if 
which, $100 is the paperwork process fee and $100 is the Inspection Fee.  
120.03.3 Please include a link to the location of the Business License. 
120.03.4 Remove this requirement. Add a requirement that the new owner of the property must apply to 
change the name and contact information for the short-term rental license. Otherwise, the house is unchanged 
and the existing rentals are allowed to continue for a 90-day period, therefore there is no reason to make the 
short-term rental license non-transferable and void. 
120.03.5 This clause is unclear. What does it mean "renting ... is required to be accessory to the primary, 
residential use of the dwelling?" Also, explain what documentation would satisfy "applicants must 
demonstrate, by written documentation" ? 
120.03.6 Remove the 90-day waiting period for new Vacation Rental Dwellings. There is no reason to delay an 
approved licensed other than to make the process lengthy and difficult, and to prevent a homeowner from 
deriving income from their property. Likewise, remove the 2-year waiting period after issuance of Certificate of 
Occupancy for a newly constructed building. There is no reason to delay application for a Vacation Rental 
Dwelling for a newly constructed building, other than to make the process arbitrarily lengthy and difficult, and 
to prevent a homeowner from deriving income from their property. 
 
120.05.5 State the amount of the Re-inspection Fee. 
 
120.06.2 Remove 30% and 50% densities and make the entire Vacation Rental Area 100%. Failing that, 
change the Spatial Density of the 30% Zone to 50%.  



2

In addition, for any Spatial Density that is being used, change the calculation from using Vacation Rentals and 
Tax Lots within 100 ft to using Total Number of Vacation Rental Dwellings as a percentage of the Tax Lots 
within the entire Zone, as follows: (Total number of VRDs) % (Total Number of Tax Lots).  
120.06.4  The term "residential appearance" is subjective and open to interpretation. Once person's opinion of 
what is acceptable can be very different to another person's opinion. So, remove this sentence:  "Front, side, 
and rear yards must maintain a residential appearance by limiting off-street street parking within yard areas." 
Retain the "50% of each yard area that is not occupied by buildings must be permanently landscaped" which 
is measurable. 
120.06.6 Remove the prohibition "shall not exceed three person per bedroom". It's arbitrary. If someone has a 
vacation rental containing a bedroom with two bunk beds, meaning four persons could be in that 
room,  where is the justification for restricting it to 3 people? Or if there are 4 bedrooms that can house 3 
people each, where is the justification for saying only 10 people can stay there, not 12? Requiring an 
automatic fire suppression sprinkler system to have 12 people puts it out of reach of nearly every dwelling. 
After all, how many houses in Seaside actually contain these? 
Remove the restriction that vacationers cannot invite people to the Vacation Rental if it increases the number 
of people in the house over the maximum people allowed. What, they can't invite a few friends for a quiet 
dinner together, or to watch a movie in the evening? What is the problem that you are trying to solve with this 
regulation? Why not address it directly, rather than penalizing every vacationer for some action they may 
never do. 
120.06.7 This is very specific to the type of activity being performed. Let me guess that what is being 
attempted is to reduce noisy activities out of doors late at night in a residential area. By this clause, people 
could be outside on a deck or play beach volleyball in the backyard, and any noise generated would not be a 
problem, because it isn't by a fire ring or fire place, etc. If there is an applicable Seaside noise ordinance, it 
might be better to state: "As per Seaside Ordinance xx.xx.x outdoor activities of a noisy nature must stop 
during the hours of ..." 
120.06.9  Remove this clause.  
 
120.10  All of the fines are excessive and look punitive. Two offenses and their license is revoked? REALLY? 
This should be reserved for an owner or property manager who is flagrantly and deliberately contravening the 
regulations. The actions with regard to licenses escalate to soon and too fast, and an owner loses their license 
for 6 months after only two, possibly minor, offenses. 
120.10.1 $250 for a first offense should be reduced to $100.  
120.10.2 Change fine to $100. Remove the "suspension of the short-term rental license for 6 months".  
120.10.3 Change to $250 fine. Remove everything after "fine" 
120.10.4 Change to: "$500 fine and suspension of short-term rental license for a period of 6 months, or if 
unlicensed, a six-month waiting period before a license may be issued." 
120.10.5 The current clause in120.10.5 says "Subsequent offenses within a one-year period: $2000 fine." The 
previous clause, 120.10.4, permanently revokes the short-term license with that owner. Doesn't that mean the 
process stops at clause 120.10.4 and never reaches 120.10.5?   
My recommendations would have the owner returning back to vacation rental after having their license 
revoked for 6 months. At this point, the count is reset and the owner starts back at the beginning of the 
process with an offense count at 0.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Jesse Taylor  

2041 Aldercrest St 

Seaside, OR 97138 

March 14, 2024 

 

RE: Ordinance No. 2024-04 

To the Seaside Planning Commission, 

I am writing in opposition to the portion of the proposed ordinance number 2024-04, 
section 120.12 Estuary Properties. This Planning Commission less than two years ago 
removed the ability for property owners to vacation rental their homes in this same area. 
The area removed was north of 12th Ave and west of Holladay Drive.  The Planning 
Commission felt very strongly that they wanted to keep the residential feel of the 
neighborhoods.   It was even said that this was one of the last affordable areas for locals to 
live and felt that vacation rentals were taking over.  To hear that there is a proposal to allow 
VRD’s in the new development is absurd, the proposed development wasn’t even in the 
allowed VRD boundary beforehand.  Per my conversation with Jeff Flory, there is no 
proposal for how many dwellings will be built.  He said per the zoning, up to 10 dwellings 
per acre could be built which could equal 200+ dwellings.  25% equals 50+ VRD’s, that is 
way more allowable VRD’s than what could have been prior to the boundary change in 
2022.  How is that going to keep a residential feel?  

Secondly, our family has owned a home on the west side of Holladay Dr since 1994.  We 
had plans to vacation rental it, until the boundary change in 2022.  How frustrated do you 
think we are to have that option taken away from us, and then less than 2 years later being 
offered to an investor ten-fold on a property not even in a previous VRD location? 

I encourage the planning commission and the City of Seaside staff to go back and watch 
the YouTube videos from 04/19/2022, 05/03/2022, and 06/07/2022.  It was very clear how 
you felt about VRD’s in this proposed area.  If this proposal passes for VRD’s at the estuary 
lots, I couldn’t think of a bigger F-you that you would be sending to all the surrounding 
property owners.  It would probably be the most hypocritical decision the commission and 
city has made to date.   

Thank you for your time, 

Jesse Taylor 



Jesse Taylor 

2041 Aldercrest, Seaside. 

4/18/2024 

Seaside City Council and Planning Commission, 

I am writing this to voice my concern and disapproval with how the city government has 
handled the discussion of the new zoning ordinance proposals. It has been extremely 
difficult to understand what is being proposed. The only discussion the city has talked 
about and took public comment on, is how the regulations will be moved from the planning 
department to business licensing. There is much more involved in this ordinance that the 
city is openly talking about. 

Ordinance 2024-04 is an 11-page document that contains a paragraph that is easily 
overlooked labeled Estuary Properties.  I would bet most of the citizens of Seaside have no 
knowledge of this paragraph. In the paragraph the city is proposing to give a property owner 
of a 12.47-acre parcel of land the right to build vacation rental properties in an area not 
eligible for VRD’s.  In this 1 paragraph the city is changing the VRD boundary and making 
special exceptions to the vacation rental rules for this property owner.  The very rules that 
everyone else must follow or face fines. Why wasn’t the planning commission involved in 
this decision? Even more concerning, why aren’t all the planning commissioners aware of 
what’s going on? Why is the city council moving this so quickly? Planning commission 
meetings are scheduled for once a month, the city has held 2 this month. 

In 2022 the planning commission made recommendations to city council for changes to 
the zoning regulations and VRD boundary. At that time, they held a work session and 2 
separate planning commission meetings with public comment before they made the 
recommendation. With that recommendation, the city council removed the same location 
as this proposed development from the VRD boundary. Why are we not following the same 
process?  

I understand mistakes were made by not acquiring the land at the estuary park, but let’s not 
continue to make more.  Below is what I planned on reading at the 4/16/2024 planning 
meeting but was not given the opportunity to do so. 

Thanks, Jesse  

 



I’m here tonight to speak in opposition of the proposed zoning ordinance 2024-04, 
Specifically the section 120.12 estuary properties.  I previously submitted a letter, hopefully 
the commission has had time to read it.   

This 11-page proposed ordinance lays out the standards that the City of Seaside is 
requiring all property owners to abide by if they want to be eligible for a VRD.  For example, I 
would love to vacation rental my property on Sunset Hills, but per this ordinance I can’t 
because my property is not in a designated vacation rental area.  As you read through this 
ordinance near the end you come across a little paragraph labeled estuary properties.  In 
this paragraph the city is proposing to bend or change a majority of the VRD rules for this 1 
property owner.  A couple examples of this would be. 

1. Location. This development is not located in an area that is eligible for vacation 
rentals.  Furthermore, in 2022 this planning commission unanimously removed properties 
north of 12th Ave from the being eligible for VRD’s.    

2. This development is not being required to have dwelling unit type restrictions. 
Paragraph 120.11 identifies 5 different property types prohibited from being eligible for a 
VRD. They also are not required to have spatial distribution restrictions; I would say at least 
90% of all vacation rentals in Seaside have some sort of spatial distribution restrictions.  

3. Waiting periods.  Will these properties have a waiting period?  Per this ordinance a 
new construction property owner must wait 2 years after their issued occupancy before 
they can apply for a VRD permit.  Is the city going to make another exception for this 
property owner?  

I’m not sure how the city can tell a property owner that they must follow 1 set of standards, 
and then tell the next property owner we’ll make an exception for you.  

If this proposal passes, my application for a VRD permit will be the first 1 on your desk, and 
I will encourage any other property owner that wants to vacation rental their home 
regardless of if it qualifies to do the same.  If the city is willing to make all these changes for 
1 property owner, they can make some exceptions for everyone else. 

Lastly, how can you even make an informed decision on this zoning proposal without 
knowing what is being proposed?   Will there be 20 homes, so 5 VRD’s, or will there be 200 
homes with 50 VRD’s?  Shouldn’t you know what the development is going to look like 
before you make a long-term decision like this?  I will end this with a phrase my grandfather 
always said because I feel it applies to this decision process “you’re putting the cart before 
the horse”.  Thank you for your time. 

 



1

Jordan Sprague

From: publiccomment
Sent: Monday, April 22, 2024 8:18 AM
To: Jeff Flory; Debbie Kenyon; Jordan Sprague
Subject: FW: Short Term Rental Ordinance Comment - 2024-03 & 2024-04

Please make sure this gets into Acella as well.  
 
Jeff Flory 
Community Development Director 
City of Seaside 
Office: (503) 738-7100 
Mobile: (503) 583-4007 
cityofseaside.us 

 
 

From: Chuck Murphy <cmurphy4@cox.net>  
Sent: Saturday, April 20, 2024 11:34 AM 
To: publiccomment <publiccomment@cityofseaside.us> 
Subject: Short Term Rental Ordinance Comment - 2024-03 & 2024-04 
 

Caution! This message was sent from outside your organization.  Allow sender | Block sender  

sophospsmartba nnere nd  
City of Seaside Council: 
 
I am wri ng as a property owner in Seaside to comment on the proposed Ordinance 2024-03 and 2024-04.   
 
Upon review of the proposed changes I support the recommenda ons maintaining the 100 foot inclusion zoning 
percentages (100%, 50%, 30%) as described in the proposal.   
This will maintain that a property owner is not inundated with Short Term Rentals (STRs) changing out every 2-3 days in 
the summer.  A current factual issue.   
 
If we are to maintain Seaside as a community for tourism and residents, it is inherent that the city council aspire to 
maintain a percentage of homes as personal residences. 
This can be accomplished through restric ons on number of Short Term Rentals (STRs) within a set geographical 
loca on.  The proposed zoning percentages accomplish this. 
 
Addi onally, applica ons, monetary registra on fees should NOT be transferable (grandfathered) to new 
homeowners.  If a property owner sells the property,  
the new owners should be required to apply to the city if they intend to u lize the property as a Short Term Rental.   
 
The fines (noise, barking dogs, occupancy limits) as wri en into this proposal seem in line with enforcing the regula ons 
to maintain Seaside as a residen al and vaca on des na on.   
 



2

The new proposal as wri en accomplishes many of the issues we have here in Seaside.  
 
Thank you for your me, 
Chuck Murphy 
 
 
 



Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

jflory@cityofseaside.us 

989 Broadway, Seaside, OR 97138 

(503) 738-7100 

- 1 - 

 
 

SUBJECT:    Short-Term Rental (STR) Ordinance 2024-04 

MEETING DATE:  May 13, 2024 

PUBLIC HEARING:  Yes  

Report Date:    May 7, 2024 

Author:    Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

 

A. Introduction:   

The Seaside Planning Commission has recommended removing Vacation Rental 

Dwellings (VRDs) and Bed and Breakfasts (B&Bs) from the zoning code. Ordinance 

2024-04 introduces Short-Term Rental (STR) rules and regulations under the Code 

of Ordinances in Title 11 - Business Regulations. On April 22, 2024, the City Council 

held a public hearing on the proposed ordinance and approved the first reading.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

B. Exhibits:   

 

1. Ordinance 2024-04 

2. Public Comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   Staff Recommendation:  

Staff recommends the City Council hold a public hearing, take public comments, review and 

discuss the ordinance, and have the second reading of Ordinance 2024-04 by title only.  

 

 

mailto:jflory@cityofseaside.us


Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

jflory@cityofseaside.us 

989 Broadway, Seaside, OR 97138 

(503) 738-7100 

- 2 - 

 

C. Introduction:  

Ordinance 2024-04 will implement STR rules and regulations in the Code of Seaside into 

business licensing. This ordinance is written based on previous work that has been done by 

the Seaside Planning Commission and Seaside City Council. This ordinance implements the 

Planning Commission’s policies regarding STR regulation, application process, and penalties 

for repeated offenders.  

D. Background:   

In 1992, the City of Seaside passed an ordinance regulating VRDs within the SZO in some 

residential zones. The ordinance was amended in 2000 but remained under our land use 

codes. Due to recent court cases regarding short-term rentals, the City’s attorneys have 

recommended regulations for VRDs and B&Bs be moved out of land use and into business 

licensing.  

E. Department Review:  

The Community Development Department put together this ordinance based on previous 

policies that were the product of many years of work from the Planning Commission and 

City Council. The ordinance strives to provide common sense regulation of STRs while 

attempting to preserve what has traditionally been lower-cost, long-term, rental housing.  

Seaside’s tourism-based economy relies on lodging options such as VRDs and Homestay 

Lodging, along with hotels, to provide places for visitors to rent on a short-term basis. 

Lodging options like Homestay Lodging provide options for Seaside locals to rent out 

individual rooms in their primary residence to visiting tourists. VRDs and VRCs give the 

option for second homeowners to offset the costs of ownership by supplementing their 

income with STR. All of these short-term lodging options are subject to the City’s transient 

lodgings tax.  

Many local businesses rely on these visitors as Seaside’s primary economic driver is tourism. 

Implementing regulations such as the locations where VRDs can be permitted as well as 

restricting the use of duplexes, triplexes, and apartments as STRs will preserve these types 

of traditional long-term rental housing while still providing lodging options for visitors.  

Implementing STR regulations under business licensing will allow the City Council to adjust 

these restrictions as the economy and needs of the city change.  

F. Community Review:  

Notice of this public hearing was published in the Daily Astorian on April 11, 2024. A mailed 

notice regarding the zoning ordinance change was sent to all addresses in Seaside on March 

7, 2024. On March 21, 2024, another mailed notice was sent to all Seaside property owners 

who reside outside of the city stating the April 2, 2024, public hearing will be continued to a 

meeting on April 16, 2024. On April 27, 2024, notice of this public hearing was published in 

the Daily Astorian. 

G. Written Comments: 

At this time, nine written comments have been submitted pursuant to this request. The 

comments are attached to this report and briefly summarized below.  

mailto:jflory@cityofseaside.us


Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

jflory@cityofseaside.us 

989 Broadway, Seaside, OR 97138 

(503) 738-7100 

- 3 - 

Don Godard submitted a written comment with suggestions he would like to see in the new 

STR ordinance. Finding: The Planning Commission does not make the decision on what will 

be included within the new ordinance. That authority lies solely with the City Council when 

they hold their hearings on the new STR ordinance.  

Seth Hague submitted comments regarding the approval of STRs within the Planned 

Development that will be located within the old high school property. Finding: The 

allocation of STRs within the future Planned Development is pursuant to a purchase 

agreement for the Estuary Park. The Planned Development application has not been 

submitted and the type of housing that will be constructed is unknown.  

Robert Houghton submitted comments as to the impacts of removing VRDs and B&Bs from 

the SZO. Mr. Houghton expressed concerns about the impact not having short-term rentals 

will have on the local economy. Finding: The Planning Commission is recommending the 

removal of the regulations for STRs from the land use codes. A new ordinance will be 

implemented within business licensing that will regulate STRs. STRs will still be allowed in 

some areas of the city.   

Tim Mancell expressed concerns regarding allowing 25% of the dwelling units within the old 

high school property’s future Planned Development as STRs. Finding: Provisions for the 

development of the old high school property are pursuant to a purchase agreement for the 

Estuary Park. The number of dwelling units that will be proposed is unknown at this time.  

Jesse Taylor expressed concerns regarding the provisions for the STRs within the planned 

development at the old high school property. Finding: Provisions for the development of the 

old high school property are pursuant to a purchase agreement for the Estuary Park. The 

number of dwelling units that will be proposed is unknown at this time. 

Marnie Murray submitted suggested changes to some of the provisions of the ordinance 

including the fee schedule, fine schedule, densities, yard area, occupancies, waiting periods, 

and number of STRs per owner.  Finding: Many of the regulations in this ordinance are the 

result of Planning Commission and City Council work sessions dating back to the early 

2000s. These regulations are in place as this is what the Planning Commission and City 

Council have determined is best for the community. These regulations are open to discussion 

and amending by the elected body.  

Chris Schwindt expressed concerns that the areas where STRs are allowed are unfair to 

those who own property outside of those designated locations. Chris stated that all 

restrictions should be lifted outside of common-sense safety and nuisance-related rules. 

Finding: The areas of approval for STRs are designated to provide tourist-related housing 

near the city’s most popular places for visitors, the ocean shore, and Broadway. These areas 

are also less common for lower-cost or affordable housing. The areas outside of the designated 

STR locations are more conducive for permanent residents, and long-term rental housing and 

should be protected from inundation of STRs. 

Jesse Taylor provided a second comment expressing the following concerns: Mr. Taylor has 

concerns regarding the boundary that allows STRs and that a provision in the ordinance will 

allow STR for a percentage of the dwelling units in the future Planned Development at the 

old high school property. Mr. Taylor is concerned that the Planning Commission was not 

involved in creating the new ordinance for STRs. Finding: The provision in the new STR 

ordinance regarding the estuary properties is part of the purchase agreement for the city to 

acquire the estuary parking lot. The Planning Commission held two public hearings 

mailto:jflory@cityofseaside.us


Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

jflory@cityofseaside.us 

989 Broadway, Seaside, OR 97138 

(503) 738-7100 

- 4 - 

regarding this ordinance prior to voting to recommend approval to the City Council. The new 

STR ordinance is based on the previous work done by the Planning Commission and City 

Council and the policies that were created over the past 20 years. The new STR ordinance 

codifies the provisions for STRs in the Seaside Code of Ordinances under business license 

regulations. Business licensing is out of the Planning Commission's purview and 

implementing or later changing the STR ordinance is solely in the scope of the City Council.  

Chuck Murphy submitted a public comment stating he is in favor of the STR density 

percentages and believes the license should not be transferrable. Mr. Murphy is also in favor 

of the fines as they were written into the new STR ordinance. Finding: Mr. Murphy states 

that “Seaside is a community for tourism and residents.” Being that Seaside is a major 

tourist destination and relies heavily on the tourist-driven economy, commonsense STR 

regulations are necessary for the betterment of this community.  

 

H. Staff Recommendation  

Staff recommends the City Council conduct a public hearing on the proposed ordinance, take 

public comments, review and discuss the request, and have the second reading of ordinance 

2024-04 by title only.  

A City Councilor may make the following motion:  

“I move to read Ordinance 2024-04 by title only.” 

A councilor may also make a motion to have a third reading by title only by stating: 

“I move to read Ordinance 2024-04 by title only.” 

If the third reading is approved, a councilor may make the following motion:  

“I move to adopt Ordinance 2024-04 by title only.” 

 

mailto:jflory@cityofseaside.us


 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-04 1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-04 
  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEASIDE, OREGON ADDING CHAPTER 

120 TO TITLE XI OF THE SEASIDE CODE OF ORDINANCES.  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Seaside has issued business licenses for Vacation Rental 

Dwellings since 1992, and 

 

WHEREAS, Vacation Rental Dwellings and Bed and Breakfasts have been conditionally 

permitted uses regulated through the Seaside Zoning Ordinance in some residential zones, 

and 

 

WHEREAS, it appears to the City of Seaside that these activities are more appropriately 

regulated through a business regulation process rather than a land use process and that it is 

therefore necessary to add Vacation Rental Dwelling, Vacation Rental Condominium, and 

Bed & Breakfast requirements to Title XI Business Regulations. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SEASIDE ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1.  Chapter 120 SHORT TERM RENTALS is hereby created within Title XI 

Business Regulations as follows: 

  

120.01 PURPOSE 

The short-term rental business license is made available in recognition of the desire of 

many people to rent their single dwelling, attached multi-dwelling condominium, or 

rooms in their property for periods of less than 30 days, and also in recognition of the 

need of the City to regulate such activities to reduce impacts on other City residents 

and for the protection of public health and welfare.  

 

120.02 DEFINITIONS. 

For the purpose of this chapter, the following definitions shall apply unless the context 

clearly indicates or requires a different meaning.  

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU): An interior, attached, or detached residential 

structure that is used in connection with or that is accessory to a single dwelling. 

Unlike a guesthouse, an ADU will include a kitchen and function as an independent 

dwelling unit.   

Bedroom: A room or other space, at least 70 sq. ft., within a dwelling unit 

designed, intended, or used for sleeping. Roll-out beds, fold-out couches, or other 

temporary sleeping accommodations including tents and recreational vehicles shall 

not be considered a sleeping area and may not be used to increase the allowed 

occupancy of a short-term rental.  

City: Means the City of Seaside. 

Dwelling Unit: A single unit providing complete, independent living facilities for 

one or more persons including permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, 

sanitation, and only one cooking area. A cooking area is a discrete area within a 

structure with any means of cooking, including a hot plate, stove, oven, cooktop, or 

any cooking apparatus other than a microwave or toaster.   

Single-Dwelling Detached: A structure in which all habitable portions 

thereof are connected structurally and comprise one dwelling unit. 

Single-Dwelling Attached: That portion of a structure comprising a single 

dwelling unit within a larger structure with more than three dwelling units 

in which all habitable portions thereof are connected structurally, each 

dwelling unit is connected by a common party wall, and each dwelling unit 

is on its own lot.  

Multi-Dwelling: A structure in which all habitable portions thereof are 

connected structurally and which is comprised of more than three dwelling 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-04 2 

 

units under common ownership or individually owned under condominium 

ownership, which does not meet the definition of Single-Dwelling Attached. 

Duplex: A structure that contains two dwelling units, either under common 

ownership on a single lot or under separate ownership on separate lots.  

Triplex: A structure that contains three dwelling units, either under common 

ownership on a single lot or under separate ownership on separate lots.  

Homestay Lodging: A single-dwelling attached or single-dwelling detached that is 

the owner’s primary residence and in which individual rooms or a guest house may 

be rented for a period of less than 30 days. 

Guest House: A detached structure used for sleeping purposes that does not contain 

a cooking facility. A guest house is not an Accessory Dwelling Unit and may not 

be rented separately from the primary dwelling under a VRD business license.   

Landscaping: Permanent features or plantings such as fencing, curbing, walls, 

shrubs, trees, bushes, grass, and other similar features that discourage or prohibit 

the parking of a vehicle.  

Owner(s): The people or person, partnership, corporation, association, or other 

legally recognized person(s) or entity holding title to the dwelling unit in 

accordance with law.  

Short-Term Rental: A dwelling unit, individual rooms within a dwelling unit, or a 

guest house made available to rent to any person for a period of less than 30 days. 

Stays in a dwelling unit for no consideration are not considered short-term rentals. 

Homestay lodging, vacation rental dwelling, and vacation rental condominiums are 

each specific types of short-term rental. 

Vacation Rental Dwelling: A single-dwelling attached or single-dwelling detached 

that is not the owner’s primary residence and which may be rented for a period of 

less than 30 days.  

Vacation Rental Condominium: A dwelling unit within a multi-dwelling under a 

condominium form of ownership which may be rented for a period of less than 30 

days.  

 

120.03 Issuance of License; Fees 

No person shall make a short-term rental available for rent without first obtaining a 

short-term rental license pursuant to the following requirements: 

 

1. Application: Applications must be submitted to the Community Development 

Department on a form specified by the department. The department will review 

the application for completeness and notify the applicant of any incomplete 

items within thirty days. The applicant will then have thirty days to submit any 

missing items; if the applicant fails to do so, the application will expire.  

Upon determining that an application is complete, the department will review 

the application and the associated dwelling unit and property for compliance 

with the standards in this chapter, substantial compliance with the City of 

Seaside’s adopted building and fire codes, and all applicable laws.  

The applicant will have 180 days from the date the application is deemed 

complete to schedule and complete an inspection with Community 

Development staff and demonstrate that the application meets all of the 

requirements of this chapter. If the applicant fails to do so, the application will 

expire. If an application expires, the applicant is required to wait 180 days 

before re-applying.  

The applicant must be an owner of the property at the time of submitting an 

application.  

2. Application Fee: An application and inspection fee of $500.00 is due at the 

time of submittal. The application fee will not be refunded should the 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-04 3 

 

application be canceled, expired, or denied. The fee for an inspection separate 

from an application is $100.00. 

3. Annual Business License Required: The applicant is required to obtain a 

business license after their short-term rental license application is approved and 

prior to any short-term rental, and to maintain an annual business license 

thereafter. Only one business license for a short-term rental will be allowed per 

owner or ownership.     

4. Non-Transferrable: A short-term rental license is specific to a particular 

property and owner, and is non-transferrable and void upon the subject property 

transferring ownership. New property owners are required to obtain their own 

short-term rental license in order to operate a short-term rental. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, new owners are provided a 90-day grace period 

from the date the title is recorded to close out or honor existing short-term 

rental bookings without first obtaining a short-term rental license. No new 

bookings shall be allowed until a short-term rental license for the new owner is 

approved.  

5. Accessory Use: Renting a dwelling or part of a dwelling short-term is required 

to be accessory to the primary, residential use of the dwelling. Applicants must 

demonstrate, by written documentation, the primary, residential use. 

6. Waiting Period for New Vacation Rental Dwellings: Short-term rental 

license applications for Vacation Rental Dwellings are subject to a 90-day 

waiting period, after approval and prior to issuance of the license, if the 

property was not previously licensed within the 30-day period prior to the 

application. Short-term rental license applications for a Vacation Rental 

Dwelling in a newly constructed building may not be submitted until two years 

after the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. Properties located in areas 

where 100% density is allowed for Vacation Rental Dwellings are not subject 

to the waiting periods in this section. 

7. Transient Lodgings Tax: All short-term rentals are required to collect and 

remit transient lodgings taxes pursuant to Chapter 32 of the Seaside Code of 

Ordinances and fully comply with all other requirements of that chapter.   

 

120.05 General Standards for all Short-Term Rentals 

All short-term rental licensees shall comply with the following standards:  

1. Local Contact: A local contact whose primary residence is within Clatsop 

County must be identified by the owner. The local contact will serve as an 

initial contact person if there are issues regarding the operation of the short-

term rental. The local contact must be available twenty-four hours a day to 

respond to reported issues within two hours. The local contact is required to 

maintain a complaint log of reported issues that must be made available upon 

request by the City’s Code Compliance Official.  

Short-term rental owners are required to report in writing to the city, the 

homeowner’s association if applicable, and to property owners within 100ft of 

their short-term rental the name and contact information for the Local Contact. 

Upon changing local contacts, short-term rental owners shall immediately 

notify in writing the City, their homeowner’s association (if applicable), and 

property owners within 100ft of their short-term rental of the new local 

contact’s name and contact information.  

A preferred contact, who does not reside within Clatsop County, may be listed 

for a short-term rental; however, a preferred contact does not replace the 

requirement for each short-term rental to list a local contact who resides in 

Clatsop County.  

2. Signage: Short-term rentals may elect to place signage on their dwelling. 

Signage is limited to one 1.5 sq. ft., non-illuminated, name plate.  



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-04 4 

 

3. Required Postings: Short-term rentals are required to have their short-term 

rental license, business license, occupancy certificate, parking map, tsunami 

evacuation map, and good neighbor rules posted in a conspicuous place within 

the short-term rental. 

4. Code Compliance: A short-term rental shall remain in substantial compliance 

with the City’s adopted building and fire codes, applicable state laws, and the 

City of Seaside Code of Ordinances.  

5. Re-Inspection: All short-term rentals are required to be available for inspection 

by the City’s Code Compliance Official annually, subject to the applicable fee.   

6. Public Alert Weather Radio: All short-term rentals are required to maintain a 

functioning public alert certified weather radio in the dwelling or each tenant 

space.  

 

120.06 Vacation Rental Dwelling Standards 

In addition to the standards in Section 120.05, Vacation Rental Dwellings shall comply 

with the following standards:  

1. Vacation Rental Dwelling Approved Locations: Short-term rental licenses 

are permitted for vacation rental dwellings only in the following locations: 

• Properties that abut Sunset Blvd. from the Tillamook Head Parking 

area north to Ocean Vista Dr. including Whaler’s Point.  

• Properties that abut Ocean Vista Dr. north to S. Edgewood St.  

• All properties that abut S. Edgewood St. north to Avenue U from S. 

Edgewood St. west to the ocean shore. 

• Those properties that abut Avenue U east to the Necanicum River.  

• Properties that are west of the Necanicum River to the ocean shore 

north of Avenue U to 1st Ave.  

• Properties that are west of Holladay Dr. to the ocean shore from 1st 

Ave. north to 12th Ave.  

• Properties that are west of the Necanicum River to the ocean shore 

from 12th Ave. north to the Necanicum River estuary. 

(See Exhibit A) 

2. Spatial Distribution: The density of Vacation Rental Dwellings within 100ft 

of an applicant’s property shall not exceed the percentage specified below 

depending on the property's location. Density is calculated by determining the 

total number of tax lots any portion of which are within 100ft of the applicant’s 

property that are licensed Vacation Rental Dwellings and dividing that number 

by the total number of tax lots any portion of which are within 100ft of the 

subject property. The subject property is not counted when calculating density 

percentages. For purposes of this calculation, condominium complexes will be 

treated as one tax lot.  

100% Density 

• Properties that have ocean frontage from the southern end of Sunset 

Blvd. north to Ocean Vista Dr. 

• Properties that are on the east side of Ocean Vista Dr. across from the 

Cove parking lot north to the Sailor’s Grave. 

• Properties that have ocean frontage north from the Sailors Grave to the 

end of N. Columbia St. 

• Properties west of S Columbia St to the ocean shore from Avenue G 

north to Avenue A. 

• Properties west of N. Downing St. to the ocean shore from 1st Ave. 

north to 9th Avenue. 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-04 5 

 

50% Density  

• Properties that abut Ocean Vista Dr. from the intersection of S. 

Edgewood St. north to Avenue U.  

• Properties on the west side of Beach Drive from Avenue U north to 

Avenue G.  

30% Density 

• Properties that abut the east side of Sunset Blvd. from the Tillamook 

Head parking area north to the Cove Parking Lot 

• Properties west of the Necanicum River to Beach Dr. from the 

intersection of Ocean Vista Dr. and S Edgewood St. north to Avenue A.  

• Properties excluded from the 100% density areas west of N Holladay 

Dr. from 2nd Avenue north to 12th Avenue. 

• Properties excluded from the 100% density areas west of the Necanicum 

River from 12th Ave. north to the Necanicum River estuary. 

(See Exhibit B) 

3. Parking: One 9ft x 18ft off-street parking space must be provided for each 

bedroom (that is counted for occupancy purposes) in the unit, but in no event 

shall fewer than two off-street spaces be provided. The off-street parking spaces 

shall be easily accessible to renters and not require maneuvering that would 

deter renters from using them. Off-street parking areas using easement 

driveways shall provide space for maneuverability on the Vacation Rental 

Dwelling’s property so renters are not required to back down from the easement 

to access the public right of way.   

Parking spaces located inside garages or carports must have a minimum 

headroom clearance of 8ft. The garage door or carport opening must be a 

minimum of 8ft wide.  

Off-street parking spaces and their access are required to be surfaced, concrete, 

pavers, or asphalt if access to those areas is from a surfaced public or private 

street.  Street parking is strictly prohibited for guests of Vacation Rental 

Dwellings.  

4. Residential Yard Areas: Yard areas abutting a public right of way must 

maintain a residential appearance by limiting off-street street parking within 

that area. At least 50% of the yard area that is not occupied by buildings must 

be permanently landscaped so that parking will not dominate the yard.  

5. Trash Service: Weekly solid waste pick-up is required during all months. All 

trash and recycling containers are required to have wind latches installed. 

Container size shall be sufficient to accommodate the occupancy of the 

Vacation Rental Dwelling as determined by the Code Compliance Official 

based on solid waste industry standards. 

6. Occupancy: The maximum number of renters shall not exceed three persons 

per bedroom with a maximum total occupancy of ten persons (whichever is 

less) unless an automatic fire suppression sprinkler system is installed in the 

dwelling in which case, the maximum total occupancy shall not exceed twelve 

persons (whichever is less). In the event a Vacation Rental Dwelling does not 

have sufficient parking to accommodate the number of bedrooms, the 

occupancy will be calculated at three persons per available off-street parking 

space.  When calculating maximum occupancy, the number of persons includes 

any visitors to the property at any time during the rental.  

7. Outdoor Fire Rings, Fireplaces, Hot Tubs, and Spa Facilities: If these 

outdoor facilities are provided, their use will only be allowed between the hours 

of 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. These hours must be posted along with any other 

established rules governing the use of the amenity.  



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-04 6 

 

8. House Numbers: A house number, clearly visible from the street shall be 

installed and maintained by the property owner.  

9. Pets: If the Vacation Rental Dwelling allows pets and they generate three (3)  

complaints within twelve (12) months related to running at large, trespassing, or 

causing a disturbance due to excessive barking; pets will be prohibited from 

that Vacation Rental Dwelling.  

 

120.07 Vacation Rental Condominium Standards 

In addition to the standards in Section 120.05, Vacation Rental Condominiums shall 

comply with the following standards:  

1. Occupancy: The occupancy of a Vacation Rental Condominium shall not 

exceed three persons per bedroom and shall not exceed six people (whichever is 

less). When calculating maximum occupancy, the number of persons includes 

any visitors to the property at any time during the rental. 

2. Off-Street Parking: Two 9ft x 18ft off-street parking spaces are required for 

each Vacation Rental Condominium. A parking map directing renters to which 

spaces are available for their use is a required posting inside the condominium. 

Street parking is strictly prohibited for all renters of Vacation Rental 

Condominiums. 

3. Trash Service: Trash services for the multi-dwelling building shall be of 

sufficient size to accommodate the total number of units in the building.  

 

120.08 Homestay Lodging Standards: 

In addition to the standards in Section 120.05, Homestay Lodging establishments shall 

comply with the following standards:  

1. Owner Occupancy Required: The property shall be the owner’s primary 

residence and must be owner–occupied during the guest's stay. 

2. Maximum Rental Units: The maximum number of separately rentable units 

within a Homestay Lodging shall be two. Each rentable unit shall have no more 

than one bedroom.   

3. Guest Occupancy: The total occupancy shall not exceed five renters per 

homestay lodging.  

4. Parking: Two 9ft x 18ft off-street parking spaces are required for the residents 

of the Homestay Lodging plus one 9ft x 18ft off-street parking space for each 

separately rentable unit. The guest parking spaces shall be independent of the 

two required owner parking spaces allowing independent access to the rental 

property. 

Off-street parking spaces and their access are required to be surfaced, concrete, 

pavers, or asphalt if access to those areas is from a surfaced public or private 

street. Street parking is strictly prohibited for renters of Homestay Lodging 

establishments. 

5. Trash Service: Weekly solid waste pick-up is required during all months. All 

trash and recycling containers are required to have wind latches installed. 

Container size shall be sufficient to accommodate the occupancy of the 

Homestay Lodging establishment as determined by the Code Compliance 

Official based on solid waste industry standards. 

 

120.09 Complaints 

All complaints regarding Short-Term Rentals which are submitted to the City will 

initially proceed through the informal resolution process provided herein. If the 

complaint is unresolved after completion of the informal resolution process, then a 

more formal process shall be utilized as set forth below. 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-04 7 

 

1. The complainant shall attempt to communicate with the designated local contact. 

The complainant shall describe the problem in detail and the requested resolution 

to the local contact.  

2. The local contact shall promptly respond to the complainant and make reasonable 

efforts to remedy any situation that is out of compliance with the provisions of this 

chapter. The local contact is required to take action on a complaint within 2–hours 

of receiving notice. 

3. If the response from the local contact is not satisfactory to the complainant, the 

complainant may file a complaint, in writing, to the City.  

4. The City shall notify the property owner and property manager/local contact of the 

complaint. The owner or their property manager/local contact shall respond to the 

complaint in writing within five (5) days of the notification. The response shall list 

the date and time they were contacted regarding the complaint, the steps they took 

to resolve the complaint, and the steps they will take to prevent the same type of 

complaint in the future.  

5. The City’s Code Compliance Official shall document the complaint and response 

and issue a written determination to the parties involved. The Code Compliance 

Official may mediate any issues with a short-term rental and complainants. If the 

Code Compliance Official finds a violation of this chapter, the Code Compliance 

Official may take further enforcement action.  

 

120.10 Enforcement 

A person who violates or permits the violation of any of the provisions of this chapter 

shall, upon conviction thereof, be subject to a penalty as specified below. Each day on 

which a violation occurs or continues shall constitute a separate offense. 

1. First offense: $250 fine. 

2. Second offense within a one-year period: $500 fine and suspension of short-term 

rental license for a period of 6 months, or if unlicensed, a six-month waiting period 

before a license may be issued. 

3. Third offense within a one-year period: $1000 fine and revocation of a short-term 

rental license. The short-term rental license holder, and any other owner of the 

same property, will be ineligible to re-apply for a short-term rental license for a 

period of one year, provided the license holder remains an owner of the property. If 

unlicensed, a one-year waiting period shall apply before a license may be issued. 

4. Fourth offense within a one-year period: $1500 fine and permanent revocation of a 

short-term rental license. The short-term rental license holder, and any other owner 

of the same property, will be ineligible to re-apply for a short-term rental license 

while the license holder remains an owner of the property. If unlicensed, the 

owners shall be ineligible to apply for a short-term rental license. 

5. Subsequent offenses within a one-year period: $2000 fine. 

 

120.11 Short-Term Rentals Prohibited 

 Short-term rentals are prohibited in the following dwellings and properties: 

1. Properties that contain Accessory Dwelling Units. 

2. Duplexes, except duplexes with each unit on a separate lot. 

3. Triplexes, except triplexes with each unit on a separate lot. 

4. Multi-dwelling attached apartment buildings not under a condominium form of 

ownership.  

5. Properties with two or more single-dwelling detached units on one lot. 

 

120.12 Estuary Properties 

Pursuant to the purchase and sale agreement for the Estuary Park, twenty-five percent 

(25%) of the dwelling units incorporated in the Planned Development of tax lots 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-04 8 

 

61015BC03800, 61015BC04201, 61015BC03000, and 61015BC02900 (See Exhibit 

C) shall be eligible for short-term rental licenses, notwithstanding any spatial 

distribution or dwelling unit type restrictions in this chapter, provided those dwelling 

units meet all other requirements of this chapter. The specific dwelling units to be 

eligible for short-term rental licenses under this section shall be designated by the 

developer at the time of the development approval and shall not be subject to change 

thereafter. No other dwelling units within said tax lots shall be eligible for short-term 

rental licenses. 

In the event that substantial steps towards the commencement of construction 

for a significant development have not transpired within a period of two (2) years 

subsequent to the enactment date of this Ordinance, Section 120.12 Estuary 

Properties shall be rendered null and void 

 

120.13 Non-Liability of the City of Seaside 

Neither the city nor any official or employee of the City shall be liable for any 

damages, or claims from any owner or third party relating to the enforcement of any 

provision of this chapter.  

 

120.14 Delegation of Authority 

The City of Seaside Community Development Department is delegated the authority 

and responsibility to adopt rules, procedures, forms, and practices consistent with the 

overall intent of this chapter, to implement, administer, and operate the licensing 

program for the city.  

 

120.15 Severability 

Each section, sentence, clause, and phrase hereto are declared severable. If any section 

sentence clause, or phrase of this chapter is adjudged by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, the decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining 

portions of this chapter.  

 

In the event that substantial steps towards the commencement of construction on tax 

lots 61015BC03800, 61015BC04201, 61015BC03000, and 61015BC02900 (See Exhibit C) 
for a significant development have not transpired within a period of two (2) years 

subsequent to the enactment date of this Ordinance, Section 120.12 Estuary Properties 

shall be rendered null and void. 

 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Seaside on this       day of            __  , 2024, 

by the following roll call vote: 

  

 YEAS:   

 NAYS:  

 ABSTAIN:  

 ABSENT:  

 

SUBMITTED to and APPROVED by the Mayor on this        day of                        , 2024. 

 

        

                                                                                  __________________________ 

       STEVE WRIGHT, MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________ 

Spencer Kyle, City Manager 

 

 



 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

 N
O

. 
2

0
2
4

-0
4
 

9
 

  E
x
h
ib

it
 A

: 

                          
 

                                 



 O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E

 N
O

. 
2

0
2
4

-0
4
 

1
0

 

  E
x
h
ib

it
 B

: 

                                                           



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-04 11 

 

 

Exhibit C: 

 

 













1

Jordan Sprague

From: Jeff Flory
Sent: Monday, April 15, 2024 9:58 AM
To: Jordan Sprague
Subject: FW: Comments on proposed STR ordinances

This one too.  
 
Jeff Flory 
Community Development Director 
City of Seaside 
Office: (503) 738-7100 
Mobile: (503) 583-4007 
cityofseaside.us 

 
 

From: cdadmin <cdadmin@cityofseaside.us>  
Sent: Thursday, April 11, 2024 9:20 AM 
To: Jeff Flory <jflory@cityofseaside.us> 
Subject: FW: Comments on proposed STR ordinances 
 
 
 
Debbie Kenyon 
Administrative Assistant 
City of Seaside 
Community Development 
Mailing: 989 Broadway St. 
Physical: 1387 Ave. U 
Seaside, OR 97138 
Office: (503) 738-7100 
cityofseaside.us 
  

 
 
 
 

From: Christopher Schwindt <chris@cds-enterprise.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, April 10, 2024 11:29 AM 



2

To: cdadmin <cdadmin@cityofseaside.us> 
Subject: Comments on proposed STR ordinances 
 

Caution! This message was sent from outside your organization.  Allow sender | Block sender  

sophospsmartba nnere nd  
Dear Planning Commission: 
 
These comments concern the proposed updates to City code concerning STRs / VRDs in the City of Seaside.  My 
company currently owns property at 924 Ave H, Seaside. 
 
I disagree with the proposed code changes.  I have no issue with eliminating the Bed & Breakfast designation and 
streamlining the process through another department.  The issue I have is with the limitations and quotas imposed 
on property owners concerning STR/VRD permits.   
 
The City’s proposal allows blanket 100% density approvals along the ocean front, which are the most valuable 
properties in town owned by the wealthiest owners.  Then scaling it back from there not even to 101 and no one 
else in the City even gets to participate in the STR/VRD economy.  This is so patently unfair and biased towards the 
wealthiest, best-positioned landowners I am shocked you would even propose this.  I guess they probably pay the 
most local taxes too, but still.  You are proposing to devalue every other landowner’s property outside of the 
“anointed zone” and boost those within it tremendously.  This is just totally unfair to your constituent landowner / 
taxpayers throughout the larger remaining area of Seaside.  I also disagree with the City restricting STR/VRD use at 
all.   
 
Inspections for safety and reasonable rules for operation to prevent nuisances for other landowners are 
OK.  However, other restrictions amount to a taking without compensation at worst, and unnecessary, heavy-
handed, diminution of value, economy-interfering regulation at best.   You should allow the free market to do its 
own work of finding the right equilibrium among the possible uses of private property.  Anything else is basically 
top-down, command and control economics, i.e., communism.  What makes you the anointed ones to determine 
which individual economic decisions about use of private property are “best”?  You pretend to know, but all you 
are doing is creating even worse distortions of the true economy, and there will be serious negative consequences, 
as there always are.   
 
You should lift all restrictions other than common sense safety and nuisance related rules.  The economy, through 
thousands of individual free-will choices, will determine the highest best use of individual private property.  If you 
don’t like the results, then take actions at the cost of the collective (taxpayers) to provide the benefit or amenity 
(e.g., low-income long-term housing) you think you can provide by just targeting the homeowners outside of your 
proposed “anointed zones” at their individual expense and the benefit of the selected few lucky landowners how 
somehow curried governmental favor.   You should scrap this entire proposal and go back to the drawing board 
with free-market capitalism and constitutional rights at the forefront of your minds. 
 
Regards,  
 
Christopher Schwindt 
Email: chris@cds-enterprise.com 
Phone: (503) 810-6374 
Mail:  PO Box 80794, Portland, OR 97280 
 



1

Jordan Sprague

From: Marnie Murray <marnie.murray@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, April 8, 2024 7:14 PM
To: Jordan Sprague; Marnie Murray
Subject: Written comments on Vacation Rental Dwellings

Caution! This message was sent from outside your organization.  Allow sender | Block sender  

 
This email is my written comments on the Proposed Updates to the Seaside Zoning Ordinances and 
the changes to the Business Licenses to accommodate Vacation Rental Dwelling Units. 
 
First, the website indicates that Seaside will only approval one VRD license per owner. Why this restriction? If 
I'm financially able to purchase more than one property in Seaside, why should I be prevented from using 
them both as Vacation Rentals?  
 
I am using the version of the ordinance available at  
chrome-
extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https://www.cityofseaside.us/sites/g/files/vyhlif6311/f/uploads/
short_term_rental_ordinance.pdf 
 
120.03.1 paragraph: a waiting period of 180 days after an expired application is excessive. Who knows what 
issues may be discovered by a Community Development inspection or how long it may take to fix the issues? 
Recommend 30 days maximum. 
120.03.2 An Application Fee of $500 is excessive. The standalone Inspection Fee is $100, which makes the fee 
to process the paperwork $400. If the paperwork is so complicated that is takes $400 of a clerk's time to 
process it, then paperwork should be simplified. I recommend a reduction of the Application Fee to $200, if 
which, $100 is the paperwork process fee and $100 is the Inspection Fee.  
120.03.3 Please include a link to the location of the Business License. 
120.03.4 Remove this requirement. Add a requirement that the new owner of the property must apply to 
change the name and contact information for the short-term rental license. Otherwise, the house is unchanged 
and the existing rentals are allowed to continue for a 90-day period, therefore there is no reason to make the 
short-term rental license non-transferable and void. 
120.03.5 This clause is unclear. What does it mean "renting ... is required to be accessory to the primary, 
residential use of the dwelling?" Also, explain what documentation would satisfy "applicants must 
demonstrate, by written documentation" ? 
120.03.6 Remove the 90-day waiting period for new Vacation Rental Dwellings. There is no reason to delay an 
approved licensed other than to make the process lengthy and difficult, and to prevent a homeowner from 
deriving income from their property. Likewise, remove the 2-year waiting period after issuance of Certificate of 
Occupancy for a newly constructed building. There is no reason to delay application for a Vacation Rental 
Dwelling for a newly constructed building, other than to make the process arbitrarily lengthy and difficult, and 
to prevent a homeowner from deriving income from their property. 
 
120.05.5 State the amount of the Re-inspection Fee. 
 
120.06.2 Remove 30% and 50% densities and make the entire Vacation Rental Area 100%. Failing that, 
change the Spatial Density of the 30% Zone to 50%.  



2

In addition, for any Spatial Density that is being used, change the calculation from using Vacation Rentals and 
Tax Lots within 100 ft to using Total Number of Vacation Rental Dwellings as a percentage of the Tax Lots 
within the entire Zone, as follows: (Total number of VRDs) % (Total Number of Tax Lots).  
120.06.4  The term "residential appearance" is subjective and open to interpretation. Once person's opinion of 
what is acceptable can be very different to another person's opinion. So, remove this sentence:  "Front, side, 
and rear yards must maintain a residential appearance by limiting off-street street parking within yard areas." 
Retain the "50% of each yard area that is not occupied by buildings must be permanently landscaped" which 
is measurable. 
120.06.6 Remove the prohibition "shall not exceed three person per bedroom". It's arbitrary. If someone has a 
vacation rental containing a bedroom with two bunk beds, meaning four persons could be in that 
room,  where is the justification for restricting it to 3 people? Or if there are 4 bedrooms that can house 3 
people each, where is the justification for saying only 10 people can stay there, not 12? Requiring an 
automatic fire suppression sprinkler system to have 12 people puts it out of reach of nearly every dwelling. 
After all, how many houses in Seaside actually contain these? 
Remove the restriction that vacationers cannot invite people to the Vacation Rental if it increases the number 
of people in the house over the maximum people allowed. What, they can't invite a few friends for a quiet 
dinner together, or to watch a movie in the evening? What is the problem that you are trying to solve with this 
regulation? Why not address it directly, rather than penalizing every vacationer for some action they may 
never do. 
120.06.7 This is very specific to the type of activity being performed. Let me guess that what is being 
attempted is to reduce noisy activities out of doors late at night in a residential area. By this clause, people 
could be outside on a deck or play beach volleyball in the backyard, and any noise generated would not be a 
problem, because it isn't by a fire ring or fire place, etc. If there is an applicable Seaside noise ordinance, it 
might be better to state: "As per Seaside Ordinance xx.xx.x outdoor activities of a noisy nature must stop 
during the hours of ..." 
120.06.9  Remove this clause.  
 
120.10  All of the fines are excessive and look punitive. Two offenses and their license is revoked? REALLY? 
This should be reserved for an owner or property manager who is flagrantly and deliberately contravening the 
regulations. The actions with regard to licenses escalate to soon and too fast, and an owner loses their license 
for 6 months after only two, possibly minor, offenses. 
120.10.1 $250 for a first offense should be reduced to $100.  
120.10.2 Change fine to $100. Remove the "suspension of the short-term rental license for 6 months".  
120.10.3 Change to $250 fine. Remove everything after "fine" 
120.10.4 Change to: "$500 fine and suspension of short-term rental license for a period of 6 months, or if 
unlicensed, a six-month waiting period before a license may be issued." 
120.10.5 The current clause in120.10.5 says "Subsequent offenses within a one-year period: $2000 fine." The 
previous clause, 120.10.4, permanently revokes the short-term license with that owner. Doesn't that mean the 
process stops at clause 120.10.4 and never reaches 120.10.5?   
My recommendations would have the owner returning back to vacation rental after having their license 
revoked for 6 months. At this point, the count is reset and the owner starts back at the beginning of the 
process with an offense count at 0.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Jesse Taylor  

2041 Aldercrest St 

Seaside, OR 97138 

March 14, 2024 

 

RE: Ordinance No. 2024-04 

To the Seaside Planning Commission, 

I am writing in opposition to the portion of the proposed ordinance number 2024-04, 
section 120.12 Estuary Properties. This Planning Commission less than two years ago 
removed the ability for property owners to vacation rental their homes in this same area. 
The area removed was north of 12th Ave and west of Holladay Drive.  The Planning 
Commission felt very strongly that they wanted to keep the residential feel of the 
neighborhoods.   It was even said that this was one of the last affordable areas for locals to 
live and felt that vacation rentals were taking over.  To hear that there is a proposal to allow 
VRD’s in the new development is absurd, the proposed development wasn’t even in the 
allowed VRD boundary beforehand.  Per my conversation with Jeff Flory, there is no 
proposal for how many dwellings will be built.  He said per the zoning, up to 10 dwellings 
per acre could be built which could equal 200+ dwellings.  25% equals 50+ VRD’s, that is 
way more allowable VRD’s than what could have been prior to the boundary change in 
2022.  How is that going to keep a residential feel?  

Secondly, our family has owned a home on the west side of Holladay Dr since 1994.  We 
had plans to vacation rental it, until the boundary change in 2022.  How frustrated do you 
think we are to have that option taken away from us, and then less than 2 years later being 
offered to an investor ten-fold on a property not even in a previous VRD location? 

I encourage the planning commission and the City of Seaside staff to go back and watch 
the YouTube videos from 04/19/2022, 05/03/2022, and 06/07/2022.  It was very clear how 
you felt about VRD’s in this proposed area.  If this proposal passes for VRD’s at the estuary 
lots, I couldn’t think of a bigger F-you that you would be sending to all the surrounding 
property owners.  It would probably be the most hypocritical decision the commission and 
city has made to date.   

Thank you for your time, 

Jesse Taylor 



Jesse Taylor 

2041 Aldercrest, Seaside. 

4/18/2024 

Seaside City Council and Planning Commission, 

I am writing this to voice my concern and disapproval with how the city government has 
handled the discussion of the new zoning ordinance proposals. It has been extremely 
difficult to understand what is being proposed. The only discussion the city has talked 
about and took public comment on, is how the regulations will be moved from the planning 
department to business licensing. There is much more involved in this ordinance that the 
city is openly talking about. 

Ordinance 2024-04 is an 11-page document that contains a paragraph that is easily 
overlooked labeled Estuary Properties.  I would bet most of the citizens of Seaside have no 
knowledge of this paragraph. In the paragraph the city is proposing to give a property owner 
of a 12.47-acre parcel of land the right to build vacation rental properties in an area not 
eligible for VRD’s.  In this 1 paragraph the city is changing the VRD boundary and making 
special exceptions to the vacation rental rules for this property owner.  The very rules that 
everyone else must follow or face fines. Why wasn’t the planning commission involved in 
this decision? Even more concerning, why aren’t all the planning commissioners aware of 
what’s going on? Why is the city council moving this so quickly? Planning commission 
meetings are scheduled for once a month, the city has held 2 this month. 

In 2022 the planning commission made recommendations to city council for changes to 
the zoning regulations and VRD boundary. At that time, they held a work session and 2 
separate planning commission meetings with public comment before they made the 
recommendation. With that recommendation, the city council removed the same location 
as this proposed development from the VRD boundary. Why are we not following the same 
process?  

I understand mistakes were made by not acquiring the land at the estuary park, but let’s not 
continue to make more.  Below is what I planned on reading at the 4/16/2024 planning 
meeting but was not given the opportunity to do so. 

Thanks, Jesse  

 



I’m here tonight to speak in opposition of the proposed zoning ordinance 2024-04, 
Specifically the section 120.12 estuary properties.  I previously submitted a letter, hopefully 
the commission has had time to read it.   

This 11-page proposed ordinance lays out the standards that the City of Seaside is 
requiring all property owners to abide by if they want to be eligible for a VRD.  For example, I 
would love to vacation rental my property on Sunset Hills, but per this ordinance I can’t 
because my property is not in a designated vacation rental area.  As you read through this 
ordinance near the end you come across a little paragraph labeled estuary properties.  In 
this paragraph the city is proposing to bend or change a majority of the VRD rules for this 1 
property owner.  A couple examples of this would be. 

1. Location. This development is not located in an area that is eligible for vacation 
rentals.  Furthermore, in 2022 this planning commission unanimously removed properties 
north of 12th Ave from the being eligible for VRD’s.    

2. This development is not being required to have dwelling unit type restrictions. 
Paragraph 120.11 identifies 5 different property types prohibited from being eligible for a 
VRD. They also are not required to have spatial distribution restrictions; I would say at least 
90% of all vacation rentals in Seaside have some sort of spatial distribution restrictions.  

3. Waiting periods.  Will these properties have a waiting period?  Per this ordinance a 
new construction property owner must wait 2 years after their issued occupancy before 
they can apply for a VRD permit.  Is the city going to make another exception for this 
property owner?  

I’m not sure how the city can tell a property owner that they must follow 1 set of standards, 
and then tell the next property owner we’ll make an exception for you.  

If this proposal passes, my application for a VRD permit will be the first 1 on your desk, and 
I will encourage any other property owner that wants to vacation rental their home 
regardless of if it qualifies to do the same.  If the city is willing to make all these changes for 
1 property owner, they can make some exceptions for everyone else. 

Lastly, how can you even make an informed decision on this zoning proposal without 
knowing what is being proposed?   Will there be 20 homes, so 5 VRD’s, or will there be 200 
homes with 50 VRD’s?  Shouldn’t you know what the development is going to look like 
before you make a long-term decision like this?  I will end this with a phrase my grandfather 
always said because I feel it applies to this decision process “you’re putting the cart before 
the horse”.  Thank you for your time. 

 



1

Jordan Sprague

From: publiccomment
Sent: Monday, April 22, 2024 8:18 AM
To: Jeff Flory; Debbie Kenyon; Jordan Sprague
Subject: FW: Short Term Rental Ordinance Comment - 2024-03 & 2024-04

Please make sure this gets into Acella as well.  
 
Jeff Flory 
Community Development Director 
City of Seaside 
Office: (503) 738-7100 
Mobile: (503) 583-4007 
cityofseaside.us 

 
 

From: Chuck Murphy <cmurphy4@cox.net>  
Sent: Saturday, April 20, 2024 11:34 AM 
To: publiccomment <publiccomment@cityofseaside.us> 
Subject: Short Term Rental Ordinance Comment - 2024-03 & 2024-04 
 

Caution! This message was sent from outside your organization.  Allow sender | Block sender  

sophospsmartba nnere nd  
City of Seaside Council: 
 
I am wri ng as a property owner in Seaside to comment on the proposed Ordinance 2024-03 and 2024-04.   
 
Upon review of the proposed changes I support the recommenda ons maintaining the 100 foot inclusion zoning 
percentages (100%, 50%, 30%) as described in the proposal.   
This will maintain that a property owner is not inundated with Short Term Rentals (STRs) changing out every 2-3 days in 
the summer.  A current factual issue.   
 
If we are to maintain Seaside as a community for tourism and residents, it is inherent that the city council aspire to 
maintain a percentage of homes as personal residences. 
This can be accomplished through restric ons on number of Short Term Rentals (STRs) within a set geographical 
loca on.  The proposed zoning percentages accomplish this. 
 
Addi onally, applica ons, monetary registra on fees should NOT be transferable (grandfathered) to new 
homeowners.  If a property owner sells the property,  
the new owners should be required to apply to the city if they intend to u lize the property as a Short Term Rental.   
 
The fines (noise, barking dogs, occupancy limits) as wri en into this proposal seem in line with enforcing the regula ons 
to maintain Seaside as a residen al and vaca on des na on.   
 



2

The new proposal as wri en accomplishes many of the issues we have here in Seaside.  
 
Thank you for your me, 
Chuck Murphy 
 
 
 



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page | 1  
 

City of Seaside 
City Council Meeting Staff Report 
 

Meeting Date: May 13, 2024 
Author:  Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 
Department:   Community Development 
Subject:  Street Vacation 
Type of Item:  Ordinance 

Request:  
Staff is requesting the City Council hold a public hearing and consider a second reading of 
the attached ordinance that will provide for the vacation of a portion of 20th Avenue west of 
North Holladay Drive. This ordinance will vacate a portion of 20th Avenue that extends 
from North Holladay Drive west to the Necanicum River and is depicted on the exhibit 
provided with the following legal description:   
 
 
 
Background: 
According to ORS Chapter 271 – Use and Disposition of Public Lands, the City Council has 
the authority to vacate certain property or properties in the City of Seaside. 
 
Pursuant to the purchase agreement for the Estuary Park, the seller is requesting the City 
of Seaside vacate a portion of 20th Avenue. The approval of Resolution #4037, at the City 
Council meeting on April 8, 2024, directed staff to set a date for the first public hearing on 
the street vacation ordinance which begins the street vacation process. The City Council 
held a public hearing and approved the first reading of Ordinance 2024-06 on April 22, 
2024. 
 
  
Staff Analysis: 
The City Council approves all ordinances and all vacations of certain property in the City of 
Seaside. Ordinance 2024-06 is for the vacation of the above-mentioned property and is 
being considered by the City Council for a second reading. 
 
Vacating this portion of 20th Ave. is in conjunction with the purchase and sale agreement 
for the estuary parking lot. The street vacation will include a utility easement and an 
access easement to benefit the public so that the stairway at the north end of the parking 
lot to get down to the estuary remains open to the public. 
Budget Impact: 
None  
 
 
Requested Action: 
If the City Council is inclined to approve the ordinance, a Councilor would state: 
 
“I move for a second reading of Ordinance 2024-06 by title only.” 



 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-06 
 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-06 

 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SEASIDE, OREGON, PROVIDING FOR THE 

VACATION OF A PORTION OF 20th AVENUE WEST OF HOLLADAY DRIVE 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Seaside has determined that the 
vacation of the hereinafter described property will not prejudice public interest and will be 
for the general welfare and benefit of the City of Seaside; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notices and hearings as required by law have been given and held by 
Resolution #4037 on April 8, 2024. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SEASIDE DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1.  That the following described property, located in the City of Seaside, is 
hereby vacated: 
 
The Seaside City Council intends to vacate the following described property, in the City of 
Seaside, County of Clatsop, State of Oregon: A portion of 20th Avenue that extends from 
North Holladay Drive, West to the Necanicum River is depicted in the map provided.   
 
SECTION 2.  The City Council has established the following findings to support their 
favorable decision to vacate the property: 
 

The above-described property is totally within a proposed development and once it is 
developed there will be no need for general public use of this portion of street. 
 

SECTION 3.  The vacation of this street and right-of-way shall not negate easement rights 
of public utilities including sanitary sewer and water. 
 

SECTION 4.  In the event that substantial steps towards the commencement of 
construction for a significant development have not transpired within a period of (2) years 
subsequent to the enactment date of this Ordinance, said Ordinance shall be rendered null 
and void, and ownership of the right-of-way shall revert back to the City of Seaside.  
 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Seaside on this      day of              , 2024, by 
the following roll call vote: 
 

 YEAS:        
 NAYS:             
 ABSTAIN:      
 ABSENT:     
 

SUBMITTED to and APPROVED by the Mayor on this      day of                   , 2024. 
 
 
             
      STEVE WRIGHT, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 



 

 

      
Spencer Kyle, City Manager 



20th Ave. to be Vacated

The public right of way depicted in red will be vacated per the purchase and sale
agreement. The city will retain all of the existing asphalt to become a public park.
Additionally, the developer will provide a utility easement and a public access
easement for the existing stairway on the north end of the parking lot.

20th Ave. Street Vacation



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page | 1  
 

City of Seaside 
City Council Meeting Staff Report 
 

Meeting Date: May 13, 2024 
Author:  Kim Jordan, City Recorder 
Department:   City Manager’s Office 
Subject:  Downtown Maintenance Assessment  
Type of Item:  Ordinance 

Request:  
Staff are requesting the City Council hold a public hearing and have a first reading of the 
attached ordinance providing for the assessment of property in the Downtown Maintenance 
District, which pays for two contracts in the district, litter maintenance and landscape 
maintenance.    
 
Background: 
The City Council created an Economic Improvement District in 1987, known as the 
Downtown Maintenance District. The district was established to provide maintenance, 
upkeep, and litter control of planting areas, seating areas, sidewalks, and curbs within the 
designated area of the downtown maintenance district.  
 
Staff Analysis: 
The City Council has annually approved an ordinance after a public hearing that assesses 
properties in the Downtown Maintenance District. A joint effort of City Council, City Staff 
and a committee consisting of downtown merchants established the current program for 
maintenance of the downtown core area. Funds generated by the district pay the 
contractors for litter removal and sweeping the sidewalks, and a separate contract for 
maintaining the planting areas, including replacement plants and trees. The proposed 
Ordinance 2024-07 is being submitted for an annual renewal at a linear foot rate of 
$10.092032 per frontage foot for one year, which is the same amount as 2023.  
 
The Boundaries of the Downtown Maintenance District are described in the Downtown 
Maintenance District packet (attached).  
 
A notice has been mailed to the owner of each lot to be assessed, stating the amount of the 
assessment proposed on the property.  The notice stated the time and place of this public 
hearing at which time affected property owners may appear to support or object to the 
proposed assessment.  The City Council should consider any objections and may adopt, 
correct, modify, or revise the proposed assessments.  
 
Assessments will be levied to the benefited property owners for a maximum of one (1) year, 
starting July 1, 2024, to provide for the Downtown Maintenance District. Assessments will 
not be made, and the Downtown Maintenance District will be abolished if written objections 
are received at the public hearing from owners of property upon which more than thirty-three 
percent (33%) of the total amount of assessments is to be levied. 
Budget Impact: 



Page | 2  
 

The Downtown Maintenance District assessment funds received will pay for the contracts 
for litter maintenance and landscape maintenance. The current assessment is anticipated 
to generate $107,574.00, which covers the anticipated expenses of the district.  
 
Requested Action: 
If the City Council is inclined to approve the ordinance, a Councilor would state: 
 
“I move for a first reading of Ordinance 2024-07 by title only.” 
 
Optional: If the City Council is inclined to approve a second reading on the ordinance, a 
Councilor would state: 
 
“I move for a second reading of Ordinance 2024-07 by title only.” 
 
Alternatives: 
The City Council must choose to approve the ordinance to generate the assessments for the 
Downtown Maintenance District prior to July 1, 2024.  The City Council may choose not to 
make an assessment and the services anticipated would not be contracted for the upcoming 
budget year.  
 
Attachments:  
 Downtown Maintenance District packet sent to property owners. 
 Ordinance 2024-07 

 































 

Ord. No. 2024-07 -1- 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-07 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SEASIDE, 
OREGON, PURSUANT TO ORS 223.112-223.132, SETTING A PUBLIC 

HEARING, EXTENDING THE TERM OF THE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FOR 
ECONOMIC IMPROVEMENT, KNOWN AS THE “DOWNTOWN 

MAINTENANCE DISTRICT”; REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 2023-03, AND ALL 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT. 

 
WHEREAS, the current Downtown Maintenance District expires on June 30, 2024; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to extend the term of the district. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SEASIDE ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  PURPOSE.  The economic improvement district shall be continued to 
provide maintenance, upkeep, and litter control of planting areas, seating areas, sidewalks, 
curbs, and gutters within a designated area known as the “Downtown Maintenance 
District.” 
 
SECTION 2.  BOUNDARIES.  The Boundaries of the Downtown Maintenance District are 
described as follows:  Broadway from Roosevelt to the Prom; Avenue A from Holladay to the 
Prom; Columbia Street from Avenue A to Oceanway; Downing Mall from Broadway to 
Oceanway; Franklin Street from Broadway to Avenue A; First Avenue from Holladay to the 
Necanicum Bridge; Holladay from 1st Avenue to Avenue A on the West, and from 1st Avenue 
to Avenue B on the east, including 50’ to the south of Avenue A and 50’ south of Avenue B.  
(See Exhibit A attached.)  
 
When the Council considers it necessary to expand the boundaries of the district, each new 
property owner affected will receive notice stating the time and place of a public hearing at 
which affected property owners may appear to support or object to the district.  Boundary 
changes will be made by the enactment of an ordinance by the Council. (The Boundaries 
were expanded by Ordinance No. #2018-08 passed by City Council June 26, 2018).  
 
SECTION 3.  COSTS.  The cost of the Downtown Maintenance District is estimated to be 
$107,574.00 annually.  Based on the total assessed linear footage of 10,659.3 feet, the 
benefited properties within the Downtown Maintenance District will pay $10.092032 per 
front foot. 
 
SECTION 4.  TERM OF DISTRICT.  Assessments will be levied to the benefited property 
owners for a maximum of one (1) year, starting July 1, 2024, to provide for the Downtown 
Maintenance District. 
 
SECTION 5.  AUDITOR TO FILE PROPOSED ASSESSMENT.  The City Auditor shall 
be required to prepare the proposed assessment for each lot in the district and file it with 
the Finance Office. 
 
SECTION 6.  NOTICE OF AFFECTED PROPERTY OWNERS.  Notice shall be mailed 
to the owner of each lot to be assessed; the notice shall state the amount of the assessment 
proposed on the property of the owner receiving the notice.  The notice shall state the time 
and place of a public hearing at which time affected property owners may appear to support 
or object to the proposed assessment.   
 
The hearing shall not be held sooner than thirty (30) days after the mailing of the notices.  
The Council shall consider any objections and may adopt, correct, modify, or revise the 
proposed assessments. 
 
Notice shall be mailed out to affected property by April 12, 2025, announcing the intention 
of the Council to extend the Downtown Maintenance District and to assess the benefited 
properties for all the cost.  A public hearing will be held on Monday, May 13, 2024, at 6:00 
PM at City Hall, 989 Broadway, at which time affected property owners may appear to 
support or object to the proposed extension of the district. 
 



 

Ord. No. 2024-07 -2- 
 

SECTION 7.  ASSESSMENTS.  If, after the hearing, the Council determines that the 
Downtown Maintenance District shall be extended, the Council shall determine the amount 
of the assessment on each lot in the district, and the extension of such assessments. 
 
Assessments will not be made, and Downtown Maintenance District will be abolished if 
written objections are received at the public hearing from owners of property upon which 
more than thirty-three percent (33%) of the total amount of assessments is to be levied. 
 
 
SECTION 8.  REPEAL.  Ordinance No. 2023-03, adopted May 22, 2023, is repealed. 
 
 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Seaside on this         day of               , 2024, by 
the following roll call vote: 
 
 YEAS:      
 NAYS:              
 ABSTAIN:  
 ABSENT:    
 
SUBMITTED to and APPROVED by the Mayor on this         day of              , 2024. 
 
 
 
              
      STEVE WRIGHT, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Spencer Kyle, City Manager  



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page | 1  
 

Staff Report – City Council Meeting 
 

Meeting Date: May 13, 2024 

Author:  Jeff Flory, Community Development Director 

Department:   Community Development 

Subject:  North 40 Ball Field 

Type of Item:  Discussion 

Request: 

Staff seeks to engage the City Council in a discussion and proposal to solve a property line 

problem at the North 40 Park and to receive direction on the best path forward.  

Background: 

The City of Seaside acquired the North 40 from Clatsop County for a new city park to be 

developed for youth recreation. The City also acquired the adjacent property to the north 

(North-North 40) for an affordable housing development. The North 40 park property 

transaction was supposed to include a lot line adjustment, taking approximately 4,000 sq. 

ft. of the parcel allocated for the affordable housing project. The survey work for the lot line 

adjustment was started in 2021 however, was never completed and recorded.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Staff Analysis: 

Through the review process for the Affordable Housing RFP staff first learned about this lot 

line adjustment. The intention behind the adjustment was to preserve the ball field that is 

used for youth baseball. As the map for this lot line adjustment was never recorded with 

Clatsop County, the county GIS still shows the 4,000 sq. ft. section as a part of the parcel 



Page | 2  
 

that is designated for affordable housing. This is problematic as the developers who 

submitted proposals for this RFP have included this section of land as part of their concept, 

site plan, number of dwelling units, number of parking spaces, and in the estimate for their 

cost for development. 

Staff has looked at the possibility of keeping the lot lines as mapped on Clatsop County 

Webmaps while still maintaining a baseball field. Four different conceptual ideas were 

presented to Seaside Kids that will maintain the existing permanent infrastructure (infield, 

dugouts, backstop). The concept below will only require modifications to the base 

orientation and temporary outfield fence. Seaside Kids was agreeable that this new field 

layout would work.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The existing foul line and fence line are sketched in orange while the proposed change is in 

blue. By moving home plate 5ft and adjusting the field orientation the baseball field can 

continue in its current location.  

If this alignment is approved and the Council decides to keep the current property lines, the 

City can both preserve youth baseball while at the same time creating additional affordable 

housing in the city—a high priority for the City Council and part of the Council’s strategic 

blueprint priorities.  

Budget Impact: 

There is no direct budget impact.  

 

 



Page | 3  
 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends working with Seaside Kids to re-orient the baseball field in its current 

location so that play may continue until the park is re-designed and new ball fields can be 

constructed as part of the North 40 park development. This will include undoing the work 

that was done but not completed for the lot line adjustment. 

Alternatives: 

Staff can complete the property line adjustment, removing approximately 4,000 sq. ft. from 

the affordable housing development and adding it to the park parcel. Staff would then ask 

the developers to resubmit their proposals taking into consideration the adjusted out 

section of land. However, there is a significant chance that firms who have put in time and 

resources to their current proposals will opt not to resubmit, especially if the project is 

smaller and will have less of a financial return for the developers. In addition, a reduction 

in the property size will reduce the number of affordable housing units in the development.  

 


	City Council Agenda May 13, 2024
	Proclamations
	04.22.2024 City Council Draft Minutes
	Ordinance 2024-03 Zoning Ordinance Amendment
	Ordinance 2024-04 Short Term Rental (STR)
	Ordinance 2024-06 Street Vacation 
	Ordinance 2024-07 Downtown Maintenance District
	Discussion - North 40 Ball Field

